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Financial Highlights and Summary
IR E R E

2011

—E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®T T

Results ES -

Turnover e 1,630,446 1,957,625 2,504,733 3,018,871 3,301,498
Gross profit e 189,163 211,941 284,697 449,808 388,282
Operating profit Pege e 99,413 124,765 181,985 303,392 258,796

Profit for the year REEFHE 95,226 126,814 163,345 230,177 m

Profit attributable to shareholders A% B FE 15 A1) 98,234 126,659 161,711 228,990 219,647




Financial Highlights and Summary
IFmELRME

2008 2011

—EENF =&

RMB’000 | RMB’000

ARBT T i ARBTT

Assets and Liabilities EERAE -
Total assets HEE 1,111,471 1,339,495 1,782,107 2,013,379
Total liabilities FE=F 223,774 351,238 324,001 357,242
Non-controlling interests FEFRRAR AR R A 2 14,992 16,375 18,009 19,196
Shareholder’s equity R R A 872,705 971,882 1,440,097 1,636,941
Maijor financial data FERBKEE -
Current ratio (Times) TRENEL R (%) 2.5 2.2 3.9 4.1 m
Quick ratio (Times) R (15) 18 16 33 ss [
Gearing — borrowings TEAR b 2 — fE 3R -
to total assets BRABEE 0.9% 5.7% 21% 0.4% 0.3%
Debtors turnover (Days) R BR R E (K& 30 30 40 37 m
Creditors turnover (Days) FER AR KA S (K20 16 15 13 10 m
Inventories turnover (Days) FER#E(KXE) 34 34 32 29 m
Cash conversion (Days) IR (RE) 48 49 59 56 m
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China Starch
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Business Review

Despite the year under review was a challenging year, the Group was still able to
sustain consistent growth in turnover. The Group still recorded a healthy growth in
turnover after excluding revenue from Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch
Company Limited (“Golden Far East”) upon it becoming a subsidiary of the Group in
November 2012. However, the ongoing economic uncertainty of developed countries
have prolonged the slump and slowed global growth added with price fluctuations in
relation to raw materials, which leaded to more intensive competition in both
domestic and export markets. And given the current economic situation, the Group
was not able to offset the cost increments entirely by means of raising the market
price. These factors have put the Group’s core businesses under significant cost
pressure and contributed directly to the decline in gross profit.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, the Group’s turnover reached approximately
RMB3,301,498,000 (2011: RMB3,018,871,000), a 9.4% increase as compared to last
year. After the completion of the acquisition of the remaining 51% equity interest in
Golden Far East, Golden Far East contributed approximately RMB21,167,000 to
turnover. The Board appreciates that the growth in turnover is satisfactory to the
Group.

Despite increase in sales, the Group simultaneously experienced severe price
pressure and a highly competitive market, as a result, the Group’s overall profit
margin decreased. The Group’s gross profit decreased by 13.7% to approximately
RMB388,282,000 (2011: RMB449,808,000) as compared with last year. The Group
recorded a slightly decrease in net profit by 3.6% from approximately
RMB230,177,000 last year to RMB221,921,000 this year, as a significant increase in
other income and gains of approximately RMB19,734,000 is recorded which mainly
due to a gain on a bargain purchase arising from the step acquisition of Golden Far
East as a subsidiary of the Group in November 2012 after netting off the loss on re-
measurement of previously held equity interest from the deemed disposal of Golden
Far East as an associated company of the Group.

Considering that extra costs will be incurred for the expansion and relocation project,
the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2012 which shall remain at HK0.67 cents per share.

HEMBE :
RARREXPERMDIERBRAR(EAARNDES
(IZ2Fhe(EFg])  MAREAA R REKE
AR GBI AERNEE-_T——F+-_A=+—
HiEZ FEELE -

£ 3e)

HADBFERBKE - AEENZXBDRSRE
ERE - SASERZUEBHEARABD(2ER]
R-ZE——F+ - ARAREENHELR Nk
KESERWWER  AEEWEZRDAHEE
IR - A FEBRRKOEBETEEERE - <
EBEFB IR R RSB R - I EEAMRHE
KRB BHERRIMATISN BT BB M - 2
NERMNKETS  AEBEREBEBIREMHER
EEEHERNRENTE - ZERFSAEBRL
KA ERNRARES  ERERENRD -

MBRE

REBEFE AEENEEBENAARE
3,301,498,0007t( — & — — F: A R ¥
3,018,871,0007T) * EEKFHELLIE IN9.4% © TEAUK
BERRBT51%RIER  SRRAEEBERY
ARME21,167,000 TR - EF@MUAEEE ZE
ERIERRIRE -

BEORGHEIEI - AEEERREYREANEREN
BN TSRE - Bt - AEEREBERNERDS
T - AEEMNENREFIELAD13.7%ZLA
R #388282000L( = & — — F: AR ¥
449,808,0007T.) ° A5 B R AN G [Z 1) EAtn A T2 I
FHEEIL IO ANREE 19,734,000 7T » FEFREFH
ANR# 230,177,000 TTE T~ 2 3.6% EARFEZH) A
R#221,921,0007T o H At e A R U w05 5B 48 N+
ZEHREZE——F+—AZTRBSERIEAR
SENMBEARR  MRRAEFFERELESR
EENBA AR ERENAERAERSNERER
EEHEEE W -

KEBRZIMRETRBELBEINAEL  EFF
EEREE T —F+_A=t+—BLLFERE
R S A& 0.67 Bl -

HERMIERARAR —B—=FFH 7



Chairman’s Statement
FEWmE

Prospects and Development Plans

Looking forward, the coming year will be full of challenges as well as opportunities.
To maintain our leading position in the domestic market, the Group aims at speeding
up the expansion to new locations and tapping new customers. Meanwhile, the
Group has taken measures on strengthening technology innovation capability and
cost control in order to improve profitability. Apart from focusing on the existing
business, the Board will keep seeking new investment opportunities which are
expected to grow in the future.

In respect of the relocation and expansion plan, during the year under review,
construction of the new plant has been progressing according to plan. After
considering, amongst other matters, the Board expects that the new facility will
commence trial production in the third quarter of 2013 with an annual production
capacity to be comparable to that of the existing one. The Group will seek to ensure
a smooth transition without disturbing the existing production capability.

The Board is highly alert to any changes in the present uncertain global economy,
and remains confident on and committed to the continuation of our mission to
maintain our leading position in China, through dedication, innovation and expansion
so as to deliver sustainable growth and profitability to the Group.

Appreciation

Finally, I wish to extend, on behalf of the Board, my gratitude to all shareholders and
business partners for their trust and support to us, and express my gratitude to the

management and staff for their dedicated efforts and contribution.

Tian Qixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR E Rl wm AT

General Review

In year 2012, the Group had two important developments. First, we had a
breakthrough for the relocation and expansion plan in Shouguang city. A piece of
land in Shouguang for industrial use with a total site area of approximately 133,333
square metres was acquired and the construction of new production facilities on the
land goes full steam ahead. Second, we acquired the remaining 51% equity interest
in Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd (“Golden Far East”). This
important step allows us to consolidate our resources in future. The Directors are
confident that we can improve our production efficiency by using advanced
equipment and the consolidation of resources of the Group, and can transfer these
advantages to long-term profitability.

Turnover of the Group increased by 9.4% to approximately RMB3,301,498,000
(2011: RMB3,018,871,000). Gross profit for the year under review decreased to
approximately RMB388,282,000 (2011: RMB449,808,000). Profit after taxation
decreased by 3.6% to approximately RMB221,921,000 (2011: RMB 230,177,000).

Basic earnings per share of the Company was RMB0.0377 per share based on the
weighted average number of 5,825,455,000 shares (2011: RMB0.0396 per share
based on the weighted average number of 5,779,680,000 shares).

Business Review

Business segment analysis
Cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products

5

RIZT—ZF AEEEMESEAER - BHE K
IR BN TTIRE RIERT RIS R MR - "%
EERESAEEAMBRETEA 133,333 F 5 KT
Rt - WREZ T FRRIEERMEHTRINE
2HHE - £k BAERESESEREEERD
BRAR (SRR BT 51%KHE - 2EWE+H
BE  ERMAURNAREERETES - EFHE
BRI B REALENEERBRESAEEER
RALERE WA BZEEBE2ELARENRT

ok
ge/J) °©

REEMEEE FF9.4% 24 ARS,301,498,000
T(ZZF——%: AR®3,018,871,0007T) ° 158
FEMEMNRLDELHARMES88,282,000L(=ZF
——% : AR#449,808,0007T) ° BrFitkFEH
3.6% E4 ANRBE221,921,000( ZF——4: A
¥ 230,177,0007T) °

1B ¥ DN S 15 A% £15,825,455,000 i 51 & - AAQ A
NERERBF AFRARK0.0377T(ZF——
& AR B INAE 9% 205,779,680,000 i 5T & - &
RA R 0.03967T) °

E 3 dE)

eSS
TR R ERFRMTEIER

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T

Turnover: =S5
Cornstarch FORBH 1,688,218 1,491,658
Corn gluten meal EREBH 244,764 218,249
Corn fibre FoRigEE 170,815 124,296
Corn germ BN 325,247 273,746
Corn slurry TR 6,785 4,137
Total &5t 2,435,829 2,112,086
Gross profit EF 185,906 194,203
Gross profit margin EFE 7.6% 9.2%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm Mo

The average selling price per tonne and sales volume of cornstarch and ancillary
corn-refined products are set out as below:

FORBAD B FORR N T &I E G i WA T 19 & 8 K 5K
EEHINWMT ¢

2012 2011
—B——fF —E——%F

RMB/Tonne Tonnes RMB/Tonne Tonnes

AR# W LI AR I8 7

Cornstarch FARBD 2,624 643,285 2,698 552,876
Corn gluten meal FRELH 4,011 61,021 4,107 53,139
Corn fibre FORBRE 1,255 136,135 989 125,660
Corn germ FORIREF 3,576 90,943 3,590 76,249
Corn slurry FoKRAE 148 45,753 131 31,540

Sales of cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products for the year ended 31
December 2012 increased by 15.3% to approximately RMB2,435,829,000 (2011:
RMB2,112,086,000). This business segment represented about 73.8% (2011: 70.0%)
of total turnover of the Group.

Sales of cornstarch increased by 13.2% to approximately RMB1,688,218,000 (2011:
RMB1,491,658,000). The increase in sales of cornstarch was mainly attributable to
the increasing demand during the year under review. The utilisation rate of
cornstarch production facilities in Shouguang and Linging achieved the management
decided level.

Sales of corn gluten meal and corn fibre were approximately RMB244,764,000 (2011:
RMB218,249,000) and RMB170,815,000 (2011: RMB124,296,000) respectively. The
demand and selling prices of such products are directly affected by the global
animal feed market.

The average selling price of corn germ was stable over the year. Increase in sales of
corn germ was mainly attributable to the increase in the product output ratio.

This business segment performance was mainly affected by the decrease in
cornstarch selling price and the increase in corn kernel cost, gross profit decreased
by 4.3% to approximately RMB185,906,000 (2011: RMB194,203,000).

HEZZ—-—F+-A=1+—HLFENTKRBH
RERRMIEIEROHEEIEM153% EHARE
2,435,829,0007L( —ZF——4F : AR#2,112,086,000
T0) o WEB D EME AL BB EEFENT73.8% (=F
——%F 1 70.0%) °

TRBH M HEEEMB2ENARSE
1,688,218,0007L(=F ——% : AR¥1,491,658,000
J0) o EARBDHEBNEZANEBEFENER
BN - AR EE RERBM KM EEREER R
TNER|E R AR R

FREEADRERBENEESI N RBARE
244,764,00070( = Z ——F : AR 218,249,000
L) R ARYA170,815000L (= ——F : AR
124,296,000 7T) - BEEMNFE L RIHEERERE
ZRREYER IS E -

EEMDEEZARERBHLE LA o

WEBDBORREBR I KRN EE THREK
RIRRA LTI E - SEFRD43% EHNARE
185,906,000 7T ( =& —— 4 : AR ™ 194,203,000
JT) e
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S W LT

Lysine and fertilisers

BREBRER

2012 2011
—EB-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETF T AR®ET T

Turnover: e
Lysine Bamk 564,968 671,409
Fertilisers PER 4,494 16,563
Total CE 569,462 687,972
Gross profit EF 183,828 252,201
Gross profit margin ES[pS 32.3% 36.7%

The average selling price per tonne and sales volume of lysine and fertilisers are set

out as below:
2012
—E—_—F
RMB/Tonne Tonnes
AR Hg Mg
Lysine el 10,006 56,461
Fertilisers AE 189 23,758

RMB/Tonne
AR 1

12,261
728

R LIEH NS HEEREEESRNT

Tonnes
U7

54,758
22,742

Turnover of this business segment decreased by 17.2% to approximately
RMB569,462,000 (2011: RMB687,972,000), which represented about 17.2% (2011:
22.8%) of total turnover of the Group.

The Directors believe that the average selling price of lysine reached the peak in

2011 and returned to a more reasonable level in 2012.

The decrease in gross profit margin was resulted from the decrease in average
selling price of lysine products and the increase in corn kernel cost.

Starch-based sweetener

HEBSBOEEBRDIT2%9EHARE
569,462,000 0 (= Z ——F : AR 687,972,000
To) B AREEBEEEN172% (2T ——F ¢
22.8%) °

EFERRERNTIHEEER T ——FRIE
KB FEEFERAKAT -

EMERP IR ERERERNFHEE TREE
KRR AS EBRATER -

2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREET T

Turnover: =
Starch-based sweetener B KE 208,862 145,054
Gross profit E5 8,706 5,111
Gross profit margin ER = 4.2% 3.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm Mo

The average selling price per tonne and sales volume of starch-based sweetener are
set out as below:

2012
—E——F

RMB/Tonne
AR# W

Starch-based sweetener A HE 2,426

BRSO EERFEEEFHIMT

2011
—T——F
Tonnes RMB/Tonne Tonnes
LI AR /A A

86,081 2,483 58,419

Turnover of starch-based sweetener increased significantly by 44.0% to
RMB208,862,000 (2011: RMB145,054,000), which represented 6.3% (2011: 4.8%) of
total turnover of the Group. Benefited from the introduction of crystallised starch-
based sweetener in 2012, the overall output ratio and the utilisation rate recorded a
significant improvement.

Electricity and steam

WK E EEANRIE MA40%ZH ARKE
208,862,0007T (=% — — 4 : AR 145,054,000
L) HERAKERERBA63% (ZF——F:
48%) - RERE-T—_F5| ARBRBHIE
gl X REARBRISEERTT -

EORENR

2012

—EB——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREET T

Turnover: HEE

Electricity ESW) 2,625 2,715
Steam B 63,553 71,044
66,178 73,759
Gross profit/(loss) EF(E8) 5,235 (1,707)
Gross profit/(loss) margin IR (FB)= 7.9% (2.3%)

Turnover of electricity and steam represented about 2.0% (2011: 2.4%) of total
turnover of the Group. As the coal price decreased by 20.2%, the Group recorded a
gross profit of approximately RMB5,235,000 (2011: gross loss of RMB1,707,000)
during the year under review.

Modified starch

Modified starch is a high-value added product which is produced in accordance
with customer’s specification. This business segment was undertaken by Golden Far
East and formed part of the Group’s activities subsequent to the completion of the
acquisition of Golden Far East at the end of November 2012. Turnover of modified
starch amounted to approximately RMB21,167,000, which mainly represented
Golden Far East’s sales in December 2012 and amounted to 0.7% of total turnover of
the Group.

B RFEANEEREANEEEEETLN2.0% (=
T——F:24%) c ARERER THK20.2% - &
SEREFEFEHISENL AR S5,2350007T (=
T——%&: FBARE1,707,0007T) °

SHRH

BUHBRHARBEFPABEENSHMEESR - 1t
¥BOMHSREET WEASEER-_T——F
T ARZERKESRREK AR EEERH—I
oo BIERMEEEENAARKE 21,167,000 7T -
FEASBERN T —F1+_-AMEE - 1A
ERAEEREEEN0.7% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S W LT

Export sales analysis

HOHEEDN

Corn
gluten Modified
Cornstarch meal Corn fibre Lysine starch Total
EXBRY EXREEHR ERER BEME SM4RD aF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TRT AR®BTRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%®TxR
2012 —E-—F
Export sales HAEE 688 109,076 66,681 112,996 12,413 301,854
Export sales to total sales HOEEGREERE 0.1% 3.3% 2.0% 3.4% 0.4% 9.2%
2011 T
Export sales HOEE 764 155,331 26,632 67,284 - 250,011
Export sales to total sales HOEEGRHERE 0.1% 51% 0.9% 2.2% - 8.3%
Export sales, save for cornstarch, rebounded in the second half of the year. Export B EXBHIN - SERNHOHEERARERE N EE

sales in the first half and second half of 2012 was approximately RMB82,734,000
and RMB219,120,000 respectively. Export of cornstarch was still affected by the
sluggish international market.

Review of other operations

Other income and gains

Other income mainly represented government grants, sales of scrap materials and
steam connection income. The increase in other income was attributable to the
increase in government subsidies and the sales of scrap materials.

Gains for the year under review mainly represented the gain on a bargain purchase
and the loss on re-measurement of previously held equity interest upon step
acquisition of a subsidiary. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
26 October 2012, the Group acquired the remaining 51% equity interest in Golden
Far East. Subsequent to this acquisition, Golden Far East changed from an associate
company to an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The gain on a
bargain purchase and the loss on re-measurement of previously held equity interest
upon step acquisition of a subsidiary were approximately RMB15,833,000 and
RMB4,012,000 respectively.

Distribution and administrative expenses
The increase in distribution expenses for the year under review was mainly due to
the increase in transportation cost.

The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the decrease in
government levies.

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S AR AT

Income tax

Income tax expenses was approximately RMB66,655,000 (2011: RMB85,476,000)
and the Group’s effective tax rate was 23.1% (2011: 27.1%) for the year under
review.

We were not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as we did not have any assessable
income arising in/derived from Hong Kong.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.67 cents
per share (2011: HKO0.67 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
24 May 2013. The shareholders of the Company will be given an option to elect to
receive wholly or partly an allotment and issue of shares of the Company (“Shares”)
credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of the proposed final dividend (the
“Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

Both the proposed final dividend and the Scrip Dividend Scheme are subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. In respect of the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the approval
from The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for granting the listing of, and
permission to deal in the Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scrip Dividend Scheme
is also required. On condition that the payment of the above final dividend is
approved by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company, full
details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be set out in a circular to be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company shortly after the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Board did not declare any interim dividend during the year (2011: Nil).

Human resources and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 2,407 full time staff (2011:
2,251). Increase in number of staff was mainly attributable to the acquisition of
Golden Far East. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately RMB96,641,000 (2011: RMB100,919,000). The Group considers
the experience, responsibility, and performance of the Directors and employees of
the Group in order to determine their respective remuneration packages. The
Company has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
with a primary purpose of motivating our employees and other eligible persons
entitled under the Share Option Scheme to optimise their contributions to the Group
and to reward them for their contribution to the Group. In addition, a remuneration
committee is delegated by the Board to review and determine the terms of
remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.

As at 31 December 2012, no share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE S W LT

Financial review

Financial management and treasury policy

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment
on uncommitted funds. Any unused fund is intended to place on short term/fixed
deposits with authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong and/or the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”").

Foreign currency exposure

The Directors consider that the Group has limited foreign currency exposure
because our operations are mainly conducted in the PRC. Sales and purchases are
mainly denominated in Renminbi and the foreign currency risk associated with
export sales is not material. In view of the minimal foreign currency exchange risk,
we monitored the exchange rate closely instead of entering into any foreign
exchange hedging arrangement.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2012, the available and unutilised banking facilities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB640,000,000. The Directors are of the opinion that
the working capital available to the Group is sufficient for its present requirements.

The major financial figures and key financial ratios are summarised as follows:
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Interest-free borrowings: REEE:
— Within 1 year — —F LR 2,437 1,551
— 1to 2 years — —FEWF 886 886
— 2to 5 years —MEERF 2,659 2,659
— Over 5 years — BBAF 1,109 1,995
7,091 7,091
Debtors turnover (days) FEUS R SR A EE (K& 35 37
Creditors turnover (days) FES R KA S (RED) 10 10
Inventories turnover (days) e (KE) 24 29
Current ratio mELL = 2.5 41
Quick ratio RELE 2.2 3.5
Gearing ratio — borrowings to total assets B R — BB ABEE 0.3% 0.4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE el M T

Pledge of assets and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, bills payable were secured by bank deposits in the
amount of approximately RMB2,500,000. Save as disclosed above, the Group did
not pledge any leasehold land and building to secure banking facilities and did not
have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012.

Use of net proceeds from placing

As at 31 December 2012, the Group fully utilised the net proceeds of approximately
RMB335,855,000 from the placing agreement entered into on 4 February 2010 for
the expansion of production capacity and general working capital of the Group.

Future plan and prospect

After the negotiation of the new production site with the Municipal Government of
Shouguang (the “Shouguang Municipal Government”), the Company had a
breakthrough on its relocation and expansion plan. A site in Shouguang with a total
area of approximately 133,333 square metres was successfully bidded by the Group
in October 2012. The land premium was approximately RMB36,000,000. The annual
production capacity of cornstarch, lysine, modified starch in the new production
plant to be constructed on the site are expected to be 450,000 tonnes, 55,000
tonnes and 100,000 tonnes respectively which will be the same as those of the
existing production site. The construction of these production facilities is gearing up
for the completion target in the third quarter of 2013. For prudence sake, the existing
production facilities will be kept running for a period of time until the new production
facilities at the new site are proven to be in good condition and running smoothly.
The management is still negotiating with the Shouguang Municipal Government for
the grant of additional land in Shouguang in order to facilitate and in furtherance of
the Group’s relocation and expansion plan.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

SEMERNAEERABRBN
Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 49, is the chairman of the Board principally responsible for
the Group’s strategic positioning. He is also responsible for formulating the Group’s
business development objectives and ensuring that such objectives are
implemented by the Board accordingly. Mr. Tian was the chairman of the board of
directors of I 55 % E g & £ K 7 % B R 2 7 (Shandong Shouguang Juneng
Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd.) (“Golden Corn”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, during the period from July 2003 (when he first joined
the Group) up to October 2005. He was re-appointed as a director of Golden Corn in
December 2005 and has been the chairman of the board of Golden Corn since
August 2006. Mr. Tian has been the authorised representative and chairman of the
board of directors of [LIH 5 E 8815 i & B F R A 7] (Shandong Shouguang Juneng
Holding Group Co., Ltd.) (*Juneng Holding Group”) since its establishment in
October 2005. Mr. Tian has been working for 5 % ™ # & 2 7] (Electricity Supply
Company of Shouguang City) (“Shouguang Electricity Supply Company”) since
1984. He was appointed as the deputy manager of Shouguang Electricity Supply
Company in October 1985, and was further appointed as its deputy party secretary
in May 1990. Mr. Tian has been the manager and party member of Shouguang
Electricity Supply Company since March 2000. Mr. Tian possesses substantial
experience in corporate management.

Mr. Tian completed his study of & /1 #E# (Electricity and Water Irrigation) from LU &
& K F| # E 2K (Water and Electricity Machinery School) in 1981 and graduated
from RFEHEEE IIRELZ EEER (The Shandong Province Party Committee School
of the People’s Republic of China) with a diploma in &% 12 (Economics Management)
in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued share
capital of Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 45, is the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao is
principally responsible for overseeing the Group’s operations and business
management. Mr. Gao joined Golden Corn in August 1998, and was later appointed
as the deputy manager of Golden Corn in January 2000. Mr. Gao has been a director
of Golden Corn since July 2003 and its general manager since May 2005. Mr. Gao is
also a director of F2/E1E8EE EREW AR AR (Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio
Limited) (“Deneng Golden Corn”) and 5 & & R & {4 B ¥ B R A & (Shouguang
Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd.). Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate
degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of Business Administration degree in 2012 from
11| 3 K 2 (Shandong University). He was also awarded the qualification of senior
engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao was appointed as one of the vice-presidents of
AR T %1% 2 (China Starch Industry Association) for a term from November 2011
to November 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EENEREEABRMT

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 44, is principally responsible for the overall management in
investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu first joined the Group as a
director of Golden Corn during the period from July 2003 to October 2005, and was
re-appointed as director on 17 March 2007. Mr. Yu had worked in the accounting
and internal audit departments of Shouguang Electricity Supply Company since
August 1990 holding positions as deputy supervisor of audit department, deputy
supervisor and supervisor of finance department and deputy chief accountant. Mr.
Yu took up the position as chief accountant of Juneng Holding Group upon its
establishment to oversee the financial reporting and performance of all its
investments. Mr. Yu is also a director of Juneng Holding Group since October 2005.
Mr. Yu graduated from L KF|FEEHE24#L (Shandong Hydro Institute) in 1990 with a
diploma in KF4&EELEF 5 E 32 (Hydro Economic and Financial Management), and
obtained a diploma in B #%%& 2 (Finance Management) from LI E & & EEIRHEEE
B (Shandong Economics Management Institute) in 1998. Mr. Yu obtained the /%
ARFEMBE S EBIRESE (Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’s
Republic of China) issued by &M S (Finance Bureau of Shouguang City) in
1997.

Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 44, joined Golden Corn as a factory supervisor in 1998
and has been a director of Golden Corn since October 2005. Mr. Liu was appointed
as a director of Deneng Golden Corn since March 2008 and was the general
manager from March 2008 to December 2012. He is responsible for the Group’s
production technology developments and cornstarch production. Mr. Liu had worked
in the production technology department of 53¢ M #8E A& (Shouguang Electricity
Supply Company) from July 1990 to July 1997 as technical staff responsible for
production management and production route design. Mr. Liu graduated from L
T % K& (Shandong Industrial University) in 1990 with an undergraduate degree in
TZEHE TR (Industrial Management), and obtained a post-graduate diploma in
¥ 4875 2 Industrial Economics) from LU B K 2 48 7 207 (the Economics School of
Shandong University) in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained the
qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of T K
HE¥E E§ (the Cornstarch Professionals Committee) of # BB £ T % # € (China
Starch Industry Association).

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Dong Yanfeng, aged 76, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2007. Ms. Dong was granted the qualification as senior
engineer by B 8 #4538 /2 (State Medical Control Bureau) in 1988, and is currently
the standing deputy chief secretary of /1 B & # T 2 % & (China Starch Industry
Association) responsible for its general management as well as organizing and
supervising the execution of its annual plans. Over the years, Ms. Dong had won
several technology awards, including % £ pk £ = % #2 (Third Level Award on
Technology Results) and % £ # # = £ #% (Third Level Award on Technology
Advancement) in 1984 and 1986 respectively granted by sl it BRI BRI E E &
(Science and Technology Committee of Hebei Province), BH # 26— 8% (First Level
Award on Technology Advancement) in 1986 granted by jil 4t & & % 48 /2 7] (Chief
Medical Company of Hebei Province) and =%54Z (Third Level Award) in 1987 granted
by BIREIER i 185738 % E€ (Evaluation Committee of the State Science and
Technology Advancement Awards). Ms. Dong’s achievements in technologies were
also evidenced by the grant of a special financial grant from the State Council in
1993 for her contributions in engineering technologies.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
ESNERETEAEMN

Mr. Cao Zenggong, aged 50, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Cao graduated from j&Z X2 (Qinghua University)
in 1984 with an undergraduate degree in & 7 %4t & E B &)t (Electrical Engineering
Specialising in Power System and Automation). Mr. Cao is the & E {E (deputy
director) of 2% E K |30 (the Development Planning Department) of LR E HE£E A
7] (Shandong Electric Power Corporation) principally responsible for power system
planning, project feasibility analysis and electricity network management, and has
been appointed as a specialist of the specialist committee of Shandong Electric
Power Corporation in October 2006. Mr. Cao was awarded the =% 2 (Third Level
Award) for his thesis on fR2E(L 38 AT — A &L B PSR BA 4 (Standardised Design
— Keys to City Electricity Network Construction and Re-modeling) by I & & #
T 72 2 @ (Shandong Society for Electrical Engineering) in 2001. Mr. Cao was also
granted honorary certificates by # Bl & 17 #1 & &% 51 % & (Electric Power Design
Association) in 2003 and 2004 for his participation in two award-winning projects,
namely the 7 = ¥ T E43%5E R ) (Jinan City Electricity Network Development Plan)
and the = 1 4t (& /1) 500kvE E BT T 2 (Yellow River North (Bingzhou) 500kv
Transformer Station Project), respectively.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 47, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue is also an executive director,
the chief financial officer, the company secretary and the compliance officer of Roma
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072.HK). Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with
over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Yue
is also a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Colorado
State Society of Certified Public Accountants. He is also holding a specialist
certificate and a practising certificate in corporate finance of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Senior Management
All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business

and operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as the members
of the senior management team of the Group.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWLE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cornstarch,
lysine, starch-based sweetener, modified starch, and ancillary corn-based and corn-
refined products and sales of electricity and steam. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 39.

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.67 cents
per share, in a total of approximately HK$39,417,000. Subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company, the final dividend is expected to be paid in June 2013 in cash with
a scrip dividend option. The details of the scrip dividend scheme will be set out in
the circular to the shareholders after the approval of the final dividend in the AGM.

Share Capital

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during the year are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Non-Current Assets

Details of movements of the Group’s non-current assets (including property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments) during the year are set out in notes 16
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 2 and 3. The summary does not form part of
the audited consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB266,279,000. The amount of
distributable reserves included the Company’s share premium of approximately
RMB222,046,000, which may be distributed provided that the Company will remain
solvent after the distribution of dividend. Movements in the reserves of the Company
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

FERHEE

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yingquan

Mr. Liu Xianggang

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Dong Yanfeng

Mr. Cao Zenggong

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Gao Shijun, Mr.
Yu Yingquan and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Independent Non-Executive Directors’ Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
as at the date of this report still considers all of them to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM
has entered into any service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policies of the Group are formulated based on the Group’s operating
results, individual performance, working experience and responsibility, merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and comparable market
statistics and are reviewed regularly.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other
emoluments of Directors are determined based on the Group’s operating results,
individual performance, duties, responsibilities and comparable market statistics.
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Report of the Directors
EFETHEE

Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

At no time during the year under review had the Group and the Directors entered
into any contract of significance.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company or
its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”) as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

ESRANUESHFALHHE

EHREERARELUSRSHALTREBEFZ M
EHBRNA G BERERME 12

ESNEHNER

AREE B R A R REE R R ERE
REHK

EERFRTBRABRAATRNEATE
EERS - HEROFESZFHERR
RE

RIZE-—H+-A=+—H EBERARAELE
TTHRABRARRREEEEEE (ERREE
EPIFE 571 BE 77 RIE RG] (B 5 RAEERE])
EXVED) Mk - BN RESS - BERE
FEr R EGRYF B2IGALBERAARFENE
M ASARE ETRAMEMN LR ETAERET
FHZHNERETA(RETR D ARTAEAR
A MBS PT R RE R ORI

The Company/ Capacity/ Number and class of Percentage
Name of Director associated corporation nature of interest securities held (note 1) of shareholding
Expg AAR/HEEE a1/ RELE KFERFHARER (MZ1) HRESAESL
Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company Interest in a controlled 3,599,787,233 ordinary shares 61.18%
(“Mr. Tian") VNG corporation of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
BEREE(HEED REHEEER 3,599,787,233 %
BREEC.10ETH
L@ (L) (FiFE2)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 131 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 54.58%
REEEARAA EREEA 131 REREE 1 2T @R (L)
Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 60 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 25.00%
attrELE REEEARAR EREEA 60 AR B ARE (B 1 £ AL AR (L)
Mr. Yu Yinggquan Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary share of US$1 each (L) 0.42%

(“Mr. Yu”) REEEARAA EnEBA
FaemETTEED
Note:

1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or the
relevant associated corporation.

2) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited is
owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all
the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 5
September 2007. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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The primary purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate our employees
and other eligible persons entitled under the Share Option Scheme to optimise
their contributions to the Group and to reward them for their contribution to the
Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any employee (whether
full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding any non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
(“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an equity interest;
(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e)
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (f)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time. The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the date on which the Shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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4. The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or outstanding
options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being (“Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

5. Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding independent non-executive director of the Company who
or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the options). In addition, any
grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the Shares in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval of
the Company in a general meeting.

6. The exercise period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the offer for the grant
of the option or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is
earlier, subject to the provisions for early termination as stated in the Share
Option Scheme.

7. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 21
days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but shall not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 4 September 2017.

As at 31 December 2012, no share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Contract of Significance

Connected Transactions — Acquisition of Certain Electric Equipment
During the year under review, the Group entered into the following

o ==

purchase agreements with LI 5 55 3% E 82 & & A BR 2 7] (Shandong Shouguang
Juneng Electric Co., Ltd.*) (*Juneng Electric”). Juneng Electric was beneficially held
as to approximately 54% by IR 5= B ALIZR S E B R A 7] (Shandong Shouguang
Juneng Holding Group Co., Ltd.) (“Juneng Holding Group”), which was in turn
owned as to 55% by Mr. Tian (a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company). Juneng Electric is an associate of Mr. Tian and a connected person of
the Company as defined in the Listing Rules. In addition, Mr. Yu, a Director of the
Company, also had 5% beneficial interest in Juneng Holding Group.

The details of the purchase agreements are set out below:
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On 3 May 2012, the Group entered into the first purchase agreement for the
acquisition of two sets of box-type transformers for a total consideration of
approximately RMB809,066.

The consideration was payable in 3 instalments as follows:

° 60% of the consideration in the sum of RMB485,440 shall be paid after
satisfaction of quality inspection of the subject assets delivered;

o 30% of the consideration in the sum of RMB242,720 shall be paid within
three months of normal operations of the subject assets delivered; and

. the remaining balance of the consideration in the sum of RMB80,906
shall be paid within one year after satisfaction of quality inspection of
the subject assets delivered, in the absence of any quality issues during
that one year period.

On 29 May 2012, the Group entered into the second purchase agreement for
the acquisition of 10 kilovolt (“KV”) heat shrink tubes, 35KV heat shrink tubes
and switch for a total consideration of approximately RMB17,000. The
consideration was fully paid following the receipt of invoice.

On 23 November 2012, the Group entered into the third purchase agreement
for the acquisition of (i) one set of 10KV switch cabinet for use at substation, (ii)
one set of 35KV switch cabinet, (iii) two sets of 10KV automatic var
compensator, (iv) one set of transformers, which comprises a total of 18
transformers, and (v) three sets of 10KV switch cabinet for use at workshop
and 400V switch cabinet for a total consideration of approximately
RMB40,056,000.

Unofficial name for identification purpose only
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The consideration was payable in 3 instalments as follows:

° 60% of the consideration in the sum of RMB24,033,600 shall be paid
after satisfaction of quality inspection of the subject assets delivered;

o 30% of the consideration in the sum of RMB12,016,800 shall be paid
within six months of normal operations of the subject assets delivered
without any quality issues during that six-month period; and

° the remaining balance of the consideration in the sum of RMB4,005,600
shall be paid after one year of normal operation of the subject assets
delivered without any quality issues during that one year period.

The acquisitions of the above electric equipment are provided under note 35(a) to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the related party
transactions disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements for connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
above acquisitions of electric equipments from its connected person.

Interests of the Substantial Shareholders in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, have an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Capacity/nature
of interest

54 HEEE

Name of shareholder

IRREM

Beneficial owner
Ema A

Merry Boom Group Limited
BEEEERAR

Beneficial owner

EmfEA

Person having a security interest
BERBEENHAL

Victory Investment China Group
Limited (“VICGL")

Interest in a controlled
corporation (VICGL)

R EE R
(VICGL)

Mr. Wang Ruiyun (“Mr. Wang”)
EmEBLE(TELLE])

HEBRDERERAR —B-—FFH

Number of shares/
underlying shares (note 1)
B3, HERARB A (MizE1)

REZATHTAD =

. RIEZ 60% (BD AR 24,033,600 7T )
BREIRN 2P EEREBERES
1

. HAE 2 30% (BI AR % 12,016,800 7T)
BRI Z S EEEREENE
AR BR&NE A BRI A
BEMEREN &

. T 2 A E (B A R ¥ 4,005,600 7T )
BRI Z S EEEREIE—F
B BRZ—FHEANTESLEES
SIS

BE LR ERSE BRIV G B IRRM
FE35(a) o B EXTIREEE SN 0 NE GF B IRE M
FEB5 AT EE BRI TS 22 5 W R IE AL LT AR RIS E
MEER 5 - ARAIHER - EAREBELHRANE M
A - Bl EREA TR ERR B WEER
BTRERHEERE -

FERRRADTARG RAEBKRS T
R

RZBE-—ZF+ZA=+—H BEFHH &KX
NERIERE 5 MR GG 336 AR RIAFEN
TR UTAL(BEFHARFEETH
ABBRIN AR RGO SBEIRGD PR ERSK
R
Percentage of
issued share capital
(note 5)
HEBRTREBTS L
(My=E5)

3,599,787,233 (L) 61.18% (note 2)

(MzE2)
292,000,000 (L) 6.64% (note 3, 4)
(M3 - 4)

99,000,000 (L)
391,000,000 (L) 6.64% (note 3)
(F3E3)
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Note:

(@) The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company.

2) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited is
owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian, an executive Director and Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom
Group Limited under the SFO as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures of the Company or its Associated Corporations” above.

(3) In accordance with the corporate and individual substantial shareholder notices of VICGL
and Mr. Wang filed on 17 August 2010, they are interested in 145,000,000 underlying
shares through the holding of certain unlisted cash-settled equity derivatives.

(4) In accordance with the corporate substantial shareholder notice of VICGL filed on 17
August 2010, VICGL holds a long position in 99,000,000 shares jointly with another
corporate shareholder named “Goldstone Fund Ltd”.

(5) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,883,097,465 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company whose interests or short positions are set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures of the Company or its Associated
Corporations” above, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company were not
aware of any person who had an interest or a short position in the shares, or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme of the Company disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements whose objects are, or one of whose objects
is, to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2012.
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Competing Interests of Controlling Shareholders

As at the date of this report, Juneng Holding Group, an investment holding company
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), was 55% owned by Mr.
Tian (who is a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company) and
accordingly is an associate of Mr. Tian for the purpose of the Listing Rules. During
the period under review but prior to 18 April 2012, Juneng Holding Group was
interested in approximately 33% of the equity interest of LI B 3 ¢ B ft £V & % &
APBR A 7] (Shandong Shouguang Juneng Heat and Electricity Development Co., Ltd.)
(“*Juneng Heat and Electricity Development”), a company established in the PRC
and is principally engaged in the provision of electricity to the provincial power grid
of Shandong Province. Each of Juneng Holding Group and Juneng Heat and
Electricity Development has given an irrevocable non-competition undertaking in
favour of the Company. Juneng Holding Group has ceased to hold any equity
interests in Juneng Heat and Electricity Development ever since the disposal of all
the 33% equity interest it held in Juneng Heat and Electricity Development in April
2012 to an independent third party to Juneng Holding Group, and ceased to have
any interests in any business, apart from those of the Group, that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, in so far as the Directors were
aware, none of the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business apart from the Group’s businesses that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance
The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance. A

detailed Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 31 to 36 of this annual
report.
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Auditor ZEEm

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers & #4fB1#5iR%R 2 B L F B @B EBTER -
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the  WREIZFEGE @ EIERAERENLTE ERNE

forthcoming AGM. REERFBEFAG FREHMEE -
On behalf of the Board REESES

Tian Qixiang HEH

Chairman E

Hong Kong HE

25 March 2013 —ET—=F=fA=+HHAH
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Corporate Governance Report

AL A S/
TESAME

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company understands
maintaining high corporate governance standard is crucial to success in the future.
The Board and its dedicated executive teams always demonstrate its commitment in
upholding sound internal control standard, accountability and integrity to the
shareholders and stakeholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (effective until
31 March 2012) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and has applied the
principles as laid down with the aim of achieving a high level of corporate
governance, except as noted below.

(i) The Company has not arranged any insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. The Directors considered that potential legal action
against the Directors is practically remote given the nature of businesses of
the Group and that the Company can nonetheless achieve good corporate
governance to minimise the risk of possible legal action against the Directors
by various management and control mechanisms, such as regular review on
the effectiveness of internal control system, whistleblowing policy, well-defined
segregation of duties, and provision of staff and management trainings. The
Board will regularly review the necessity of arranging an insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

(i) Ms. Dong Yanfeng and Mr. Cao Zenggong, both being independent non-
executive Directors, were not able to attend the annual general meeting held
on 13 June 2012 because they were occupied with other business
engagements.

Instead of setting up a specialised committee for performing the function of
corporate governance, the Board recognises such duties and takes the following
responsibilities:

—  todevelop and review the policies and practices on corporate governance;

—  toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

—  toreview and monitor the policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

—  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors; and

—  toreview the Company’s compliance with the code provision and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The details of the corporate governance reviews and works performed are explained
below in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Business Model and Strategy

The Group has the mission to capturing an increasing market share and expanding
our business scope to become a market leader in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") corn-refinery industry. To achieve this goal, the Directors and its
management team are engaged in expanding our production capacity of cornstarch
and lysine products, expanding our product pipeline, expanding our marketing force
and our market coverage, and enhancing our research and development capability.
In addition, the Directors regard that food safety and production safety are also the
keys to succeed. The Directors are keen to promote working environment safety in
all production sites and the use of non-genetically modified corn kernel for our
products. Looking forward, we will focus on the relocation project, which is part of
the expansion plan of the Group, in Shouguang, the PRC. Details of the Group’s
future plan and prospect are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section of this annual report.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code
applies to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that they are subject
to its provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and that all
the Directors confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the
Dealing Code throughout the year under review.

The Board

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for strategic
leadership, approving annual budget, formulating business plans and long term
strategy, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the management.
The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information and the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. The Board has, with the
assistance of the internal audit department and its Audit Committee, conducted a
review on the Group’s internal control system including the adequacy of the
resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and the relevant training programmes and budget.

To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions to
various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees
operates under their respective written terms of reference on terms no less exacting
than the code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Suggestions
and conclusions of the Board committees will be reported to the Board in its
subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities to
the executive management team under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer.
The Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management team, is
responsible for the operations and business development of the Group.

As at the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board comprises of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tian Qixiang, Mr. Gao Shijun, Mr. Yu Yingquan and Mr. Liu
Xianggang and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Dong
Yanfeng, Mr. Cao Zenggong and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken.
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Four regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance by all Directors. Additional Board meetings are convened as
and when required.

Details of the Director’s attendance record in Board meetings and committee
meetings are as follows:

Board
Ezg
Regular Others
EHgR
Executive Directors: YTEE
Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) AEFELE(EE) 444 3/5*
Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer) St EL A (TE ) 4/4 5/5
Mr. Yu Yingquan Trz2EE 414 3/5*
Mr. Liu Xianggang BIRMmEAE 4/4 5/5
Independent non-executive Directors: BIFHITES:
Ms. Dong Yanfeng EELzt 44 5/5
Mr. Cao Zenggong ERMEAE 3/4 4/5
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERAE 4/4 5/5
* The Directors were required to abstain from the meetings which they were interested in

the transactions pursuant to the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) of the Company.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr. Tian
Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” in this annual report.

During the year under review, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills by
attending seminar or course and reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business and director’s duties and responsibilities. In addition, in order to allow the
Directors to understand the latest development of regulatory and compliance issues,
they are also provided with market news and regulatory updates from time to time.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and are not
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the
Chairman, who is primarily responsible for strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun
serves as the Chief Executive Officer, who is primarily responsible for the operations
and business development of the Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (“Mr. Leung”) is a full-time employee and is appointed as the
company secretary of the Company since February 2008. He also serves as the
secretary of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and other board committees as organised by the Board from time to time.
Mr. Leung is responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer on governance matters, for example, Board procedures and
compliance of applicable laws and regulations.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Leung is also
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung takes no less than 15 hours of professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.

Director’s Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of two years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence and must
provide an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Audit Committee

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk
management system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advices to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as
well as their terms of appointment. During the year, the Company adopted a
whistleblowing policy in order to allow our employees or other stakeholders (e.g.
suppliers and customers) of the Company to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
Audit Committee about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent
non-executive Directors namely Ms. Dong Yanfeng, Mr. Cao Zenggong and Mr. Yue
Kwai Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee met two times during the year under review. In 2012, the Audit
Committee reviewed the results and the financial reports with the management,
discussed the annual audit issues with the external auditor and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor.
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Remuneration Committee

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to made recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors of
the Company. The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently consists of all
independent non-executive Directors namely Ms. Dong Yanfeng, Mr. Cao Zenggong
and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr.
Yue Kwai Wa, Ken is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under review. During the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made recommendation on the
remuneration, including discretionary bonus, of the Directors and the remuneration
policies.

Nomination Committee

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to review and provide recommendations to the
shareholders of the Company on the terms of Director’s service contract, and to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent
non-executive Directors namely Ms. Dong Yanfeng, Mr. Cao Zenggong and Mr. Yue
Kwai Wa, Ken and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue Kwai
Wa, Ken is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review. During the
meeting, the Nomination Committee made recommendation to the Board for the re-
election of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting and reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and evaluated the
structure and composition of the Board.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standard. Suitable
accounting policies have been used and applied consistently, and reasonable and
prudent judgement and estimates have been made. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of
the Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board meetings.
The Chairman of the Company is responsible for explaining the latest business
development and financial projections to the Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees payable to the external auditor of
the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit and non-audit services
are approximately HK$1,552,000 and HK$34,000 respectively.
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Internal Control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group. The management of the Group is dedicated to improve the efficiency
of accounting and financial reporting of the Group. During the year under review, the
Board, through the internal audit department, has performed internal control review
on major operations of the Group. The scope of review is determined by the Board
and the Audit Committee. The results, with potential control, operational, compliance
and financial impact, are discussed in the Board meeting. The Group is not aware of
any material internal control weaknesses affecting the overall operation.

Relationship with Shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, shareholder(s) holding not less than one
tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company can convene an extraordinary
general meetings (the “EGM”) by depositing the requisition in writing to the Directors
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring the EGM. The requisition in
writing should be sent to the Company'’s office at Suite 3312, Tower 1, Times Square,
1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The same procedure also applies to
any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The Board will review
shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
above address or by email (ir@chinastarch.com.hk).

In case of shareholding enquires, shareholders should direct their enquiries
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, via its online holding enquiry at www.tricoris.com, or by email to
is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person
at its public counter at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and will not
disclose shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required by law to
do so.

Constitutional Documents

The Company does not have any changes in the constitutional document during the
year under review.
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Independent Auditor's Report
VR A e Ty

o
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 39 to 104, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

" 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE_-Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2012
—E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Turnover EHEE 5 3,301,498 3,018,871
Cost of goods sold PHERR A (2,913,216) (2,569,063)
Gross profit EF 388,282 449,808
Distribution expenses DIHER (78,184) (72,462)
Administrative expenses THEHA (82,152) (85,070)
Other income and gains EH A A R iz 6 30,850 11,116
Operating profit PN 258,796 303,392
Finance income B U A 7 32,563 13,316
Finance costs BE R A 8 (318) (512)
Share of result of an associate B —REE A RIEE (2,465) (543)
Profit before taxation R 5 B A1 R 9 288,576 315,653
Income tax expenses FriSHi Sz 10 (66,655) (85,476)
Profit and total comprehensive income RNEEFERERE W Bz
for the year 221,921 230,177
Attributable to: AT S IR
Equity holders of the Company ARABERIFAEA 219,647 228,990
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R A2 2,274 1,187
221,921 230,177
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) BIRERARE SRR (ARE) 13 0.0377 0.0396
Dividends % 8 14 31,961 31,393

The notes on pages 46 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= AR IR

As at 31 December 2012 RZ-ZT——F+=-_A=+—H

2012
—E—_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TR AREF T
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 16 778,319 537,660
Prepaid lease payments TEHEER 17 103,259 57,570
Interest in an associate R—REEE R A S 19 - 41,135
Deposit for acquisition of prepaid lease WETENEERNRES
payments 20 80,000 47,249
Deposit for acquisition of property, B -« B R BHRES
plant and equipment 103,977 -
Deferred tax assets REETIBEE 27 1,254 =
1,066,809 683,614
Current assets RENEE
Inventories e 21 182,506 207,065
Prepaid lease payments TERHEER 17 2,500 1,612
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A UGk 22 387,188 293,966
Income tax recoverable AI B FTAE L 1,043 -
Pledged bank deposits BHEAIRITIERK 23 2,500 2,683
Fixed deposits with maturity period over =@EA N FEHER
three months 24 340,000 450,000
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 24 459,266 374,539
1,375,003 1,329,765
Total assets HMEE 2,441,812 2,013,379
Equity s
Equity attributable to AAREREE ABGESR
equity holders of the Company
Share capital A& 7R 25 523,670 515,234
Reserves G 1,321,160 1,121,707
Attributable to equity holders RS A AL 1,844,830 1,636,941
Non-controlling interests FEERS AR R M 2 21,470 19,196
Total equity R 1,866,300 1,656,137
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B oI R

As at 31 December 2012 R=ZZE—=—F+=-F=+—H

2012
—E——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAE 27 - 619
Borrowings RN 28 4,654 5,540
Deferred income IRIEWA 29 26,630 26,693
31,284 32,852

Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMPERK 30 495,989 265,999
Income tax payable ERREE 19,495 30,533
Employee housing deposits BETEERES 31 26,307 26,307
Borrowings RN 28 2,437 1,551
544,228 324,390
Total liabilities FER=N 575,512 357,242
Total equity and liabilities EERamesE 2,441,812 2,013,379
Net current assets REEEZE 830,775 1,005,375
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABER 1,897,584 1,688,989
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE# FHEE
Director Director
EF E

The notes on pages 46 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 5 46 & 104 B M 55 T3 & 61 B 15 3R 7= 59 H 7 &5
statements. 7 e
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Statement of Financial Position

BT IR LR

As at 31 December 2012 RZ-ZT——F+=-_A=+—H

2012
—E—_—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NN S = 18 159,121 159,121
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG B 18 629,185 643,600
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 24 3,152 8,576
632,337 652,176
Total assets BEE 791,458 811,297
Equity fE=
Equity attributable to KATERSEEARGER
equity holders of the Company
Share capital IN 25 523,670 515,234
Reserves s 26 266,279 291,619
Total equity REHEEE 789,949 806,853
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H At TR 30 1,509 4,444
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHET 791,458 811,297
Net current assets REEERER 630,828 647,732
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAR 789,949 806,853
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE# FxEz
Director Director
E 2

The notes on pages 46 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 55 46 & 104 B B M 5F T3 & GFEA IS R 9 H h &6
statements. 5o

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
M RE LB BN R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE_-Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR REREE AEL

Non-
Share Share  Special Capital  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests Total

FER
Bax  RORE KHRE EARE  iERE  BEEA axt  RRER fi
Nott RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'O00  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ME AREFT ARETT ARETT AR%TR T ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
(note 26(i) (note 26(ii)

At 1 January 2011 WZE——%—-f—H 515,234 274,386 27,080 56,196 92,439 4747762 1,440,097 18,009 1,458,106
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEEFEREGA
income for the year = - - - - - 228990 228990 1,187 230,177
2010 final dividend 5% 14 - (3214) - - - - (32146) - (32.146)
Transfer o statutory reserves & AT R % = - - - 24426 (24,426) - = -
At 31 December 2011 RZZ—5+ZA
=t-A 515,234 242,240 27,080 56,196 116,865 679,326 1,636,941 19,196 1,656,137
At 1 January 2012 RZE——%—f—H 515,234 242,240 27,080 56,196 116,865 679,326 1,636,941 19,196 1,656,137
Profit and total comprehensive  AEEFBRGA
income for the year Wiz - - - - - 219647 219,647 2214 221,921
2011 final dividend “E—FRERE 14 - (31582) - - - - (31582) - (31582
Issue of shares under scrip RIEARE B5tEl
dividend scheme BIRH 25 8,436 11,388 - - - - 19,824 - 19,824
Transfer to statutory reserves B AEE 1S - - - - 20538 (20,538) - - -
At 31 December 2012 N S
==0 523,670 222,046 27,080 56,196 137,403 878,435 1,844,830 21,470 1,866,300

The notes on pages 46 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £ 46 & 104 B I 5F T34 (181 76 R 2k K E A 26
statements. 7 e

N
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHIREREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE—ZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

2012
—E—C—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELENRERE
Profit before taxation R %5 Al AR 288,576 315,653
Adjustments for: KRABATIER :
Finance income A& WA 7 (32,563) (13,316)
Finance costs BhE KA 8 318 512
Share of result of an associate FEME — K& A R HAE 2,465 543
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - = R RETE 16 67,571 63,741
Realised gain arising on injecting property, M—REEE A RDEAYZE -
plant and equipment and land use right = K iR AN L i AR A
as capital to an associate EE T E AR D ZE W 6 (379) (427)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEK&E
plant and equipment (M=), B8 6 (214) 2,302
Loss on re-measurement of previously DB WEN B ARBEFTE
held equity interest upon step acquisition LA R AR
of a subsidiary &8 34 4,012 =
Gain on a bargain purchase of a subsidiary EERE—RWBARZ W= 34 (15,833) -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TES T & R A 5 17 1,566 1,515
Amortisation of steam connection income T B KBS Bl
and government grants b % 29 (3,205) (2,999)
Operating cash flows before movements EEESHREH Z A
in working capital KERPME 312,314 367,524
Increase in deferred income attributable to FAERIRAELS
steam connection income IEFE U A AN 3,142 2,060
Increase in deferred income attributable to B T 465 B {1 03 SE M A8 Jn
government grants = 4,450
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL /(L) 31,659 (10,232)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 R EADREUGR (3 hN) R
receivables (43,790) 67,057
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 RHE M FE R N 218,722 42,235
Cash generated from operations KEEENES 522,047 473,094
Income taxes paid EAMATSE (79,566) (66,253)
Net cash generated from operating activities KB EEFTE A IR &R 442,481 406,841
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHREESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HZE=-ZT——F+=-/F=+—HILFE

Cash flows from investing activities

RETHEENRERE

2012
—E—_—F

RMB’000
AR¥ T

RMB’000
AREF T

Interest received BT & 32,563 13,316
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWXE  BER&E (301,399) (64,333)
Deposit for acquisition of prepaid lease WEETENHERNRE S

payments (40,000) (47,249)
Deposit for acquisition of property, B © B R EAIRES

plant and equipment (103,977) -
Increase in prepaid lease payments TEFRE RGN (35,194) (16,074)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE MREER

and equipment 1,537 1,342
Step acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash 73 P B AR BB B B A A

acquired (NBRFEBARSE) 34 (9,391) -
Decrease in loan receivable FEWCE FOR = 1,917
Decrease/(increase) in fixed deposits with =@A R EEHER

maturity period over three months A (EAn) 110,000 (150,000)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 2RI TEZR L (3L 0) 183 (2,683)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBEANIREIFHE (345,678) (263,764)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEHELENRESRE
Interest paid ERFE (318) (512)
Dividends paid BEAARE 25 (11,758) (14,458)
Repayments of borrowings EEE R = (29,965)
Decrease in employee housing deposits ETEERERZ2RD = (74)
Net cash used in financing activities BB R PE AR e IFHE (12,076) (45,009)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERFSEEBMILINFEE 84,727 98,068
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FHHHEE &

of the year REZEEY 374,539 276,471
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRMBEE RS EEY

of the year represented by bank (CASRITHE SR R

balances and cash BLTR) 24 459,266 374,539

The notes on pages 46 to 104 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot SRR I At

46

General information

China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its ultimate holding
company is Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”) (incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)). The address of the registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P. O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine,
starch-based sweetener, modified starch and its related products and
generation and sales of electricity and steam.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated, and are approved for issue by the board of directors
(the “Board”) on 25 March 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKAS 12 (amendment), “Deferred tax —
recovery of underlying assets” during the year ended 31 December
2012, it requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating to an
asset depending on whether the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of the asset through use or sale. It can be difficult and
subjective to assess whether recovery will be through use or through
sale when the asset is measured using the fair value model in HKAS 40
Investment Property. Hence this amendment introduces an exception to
the existing principle for the measurement of deferred tax assets or
liabilities arising on investment property measured at fair value. As a
result of the amendments, HK(SIC) 21, ‘Income taxes — recovery of
revalued non-depreciable assets’, would no longer apply to investment
properties carried at fair value. The amendments also incorporate into
HKAS 12 the remaining guidance previously contained in HK(SIC) 21,
which is accordingly withdrawn.

The adoption of HKAS 12 (amendment) and other amendments to
standards does not have material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position nor any substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HRRME

2

48

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The following new/revised standards and amendments to standards
and interpretation potentially relevant to the Group’s operations, have
been issued, are mandatory, and will be adopted by the Group for

accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013:

HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 19 (amendment)
HKAS 27 (revised 2011)
HKAS 28 (revised 2011)

HKAS 32 (amendment)

HKFRS 1 (amendment)
HKFRS 7 (amendment)
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

(amendments)
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (amendments)

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKFRSs

Presentation of financial statements on
other comprehensive income!
Employee benefits?
Separate financial statements?
Associates and joint ventures?
Financial instruments: presentation
— offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®
First time adoption — government loans?
Financial instruments: disclosures
— offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?
Mandatory effective date and transition
disclosures*
Financial instruments*

Consolidated financial statements?®

Transition guidance?

Joint arrangements?
Disclosures of interests in other entities?
Fair value measurements?

Annual improvements to HKFRS 20112

! Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
s Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The Group has not early adopted these new/revised standards and
amendments to standards in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of these new/revised standards
and amendments to standards and has so far concluded that the
adoption of these new/revised standards and amendments to standards
would not have a significant impact on its results of operations and

financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HRRME

2

50

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combination (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair
value of non-controlling interest over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this
consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2

TESHBORBE (H)

22 MEBAEE)
221 &H6tRE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

REEG(E)
FELSHERBEENR
B BEIEER RSN
R ELRE BB
VNG Sl k=¥ S
BEFENER - ML
BRI T UL B Ft B 2 ]
FEEMAFE %=
AR PR

RHHE R~ Fl A A&
B(TEEHEHEE
%)

5 B B B I AR R
REETETEERE
ZHI R R 5 AR AE
wmRP — BEEFA
NEAEREER A #
TR 5 ° B X ASEA
REDFEEARE
EPTUIEF B A BEE
EREENEZRLES
RS o (7 FEFE IR ER
B H 6 O 2 5 I RC 8RR
Rz °

HE W A F]

EAREAREHERN
ZHIERERTES
REZ B RO (E o] (R 2 4
®mE R AT EENF
B mEEEZEZHERN
BENER - BT HR
PN PN =N
HeRBEEDAKRE
BN ATEER
YIBRE B - bLsh - Z Al
M E RN EM2E R
BREANEANSES
AN A SR 8 B B
EHREEEXERENT
AARR e BRRRZ
A B At 4R & o zs o
RNEEEENIHEE

fi-F)

FEBDERARAT —B——FF§ 51



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HRRME

2
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

23

24

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of
the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/
(loss) of an associate’ in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2

24

25

2.6

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the end of
the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are taken to
other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under construction, are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Property, plant and equipment under construction for production
or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Property, plant
and equipment under construction is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of
any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15-35 years
Plant and machinery 5-12 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Other machinery 4-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
income’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

(a)

(c)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘pledged bank deposits’, ‘fixed deposits with maturity
period over three months’, ‘cash and cash equivalents’ and ‘trade
and other receivables’ in the consolidated statement of financial
position (note 2.11 and 2.12).

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

213

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

2 FREFBEBEEA)

2.11

2.12

213

2.14

2.15

B 5 REAMBEYK

BIREHAR BEXBREPHRE
EEMBREPHFIA - WEHEHE
it FE R TR A S — S gz AR E] (=
i ME R - AIREBWIER L 2R
HA) - Ao EARDEE B
LOOERBEEZS -

B 5 N H 8 YR ) 4R R B
R HRERERN KRR A
MERERETE

RERAEEEY
HAekReSBEYRETFRERE R
TTRATF AR E MR EH B A =1{E
AZATHERRREIERE

IR

TRER DA AR o BEITHREE
A 7 B 1% A B A 38 B A AR (HIBR 3
) - HIARERIERFTFRHERE °

B S ENR
BIRNRARBEXEBREPHRA
HEFBEEERZRBOARNE
£ HEZRNRN —FRZAEIH
(S RER  AIREBHERZ
EEEA) RIS BRRHEE -
BRIEREBEZ

B RNTIRAFENSHER - 2K
RAERA R EIZEHAAFE -

EEN

EFRAFENSER  TNREE
EHRGA o f&RBER IZE A
FIBR : FTS AR (R H A AS) E2fE
BEZHENEMZRE  ERERMEE
REFHNER fHR A RERTIER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in ‘finance costs’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries and
associate operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(a)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associate, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contributions pension plans in Hong
Kong and the Mainland China. A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s contributions to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are expensed as incurred. Both the
Group and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
5% of each individual’s relevant income with a maximum amount
of HK$1,250 per month as a mandatory contribution. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group and
managed by independent professional fund managers.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For employees in Mainland China, the Group contributes on a
monthly basis to various defined contribution plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) based on certain percentage of the
relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan
are expected to be settled within twelve months and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they are
settled.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets)
and including that of non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. At the balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, and represents amounts receivables for goods supplied,
stated net of returns and value added taxes.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has delivered goods
to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the goods, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the goods. Delivery does not occur
until the products have been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Sales of steam and electricity are recognised when steam and electricity
are generated and transmitted.

Steam connection income received from customers for the provision of

steam supply are deferred and amortised into the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the estimated usage period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When
a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

(@) The Group as lessee
Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

(b) Land use rights
Land use rights are accounted for as operating leases and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing of
new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets when all
of the following criteria are fulfilled:

(a) itis technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

(b)  management intends to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

(c) thereis an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset are available;
and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding
five years.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Financial risk management

(@)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include borrowings, trade and
bills receivables, trade and bills payables, employee housing deposits,
fixed deposits with maturity period over three months, cash and cash
equivalents and amounts due from/to related companies. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

Market risk

U

Foreign exchange risk

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in
foreign currencies, hence, exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arise. Approximately 9% (2011: 8%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entity.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial translation or recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States Dollars and Hong Kong
Dollars.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions arising from
its operations primarily do not expose to material foreign
exchange risk. Other than certain cash and bank balances, loan
receivable, trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, the Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in RMB. The Group generates RMB from sales in
the PRC to meet its liabilities denominated in RMB. The Group
has not used any forward contracts or currency borrowings to
hedge its exposure as the cost-benefit is considered not effective.

At 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2011: 5%) against United States Dollars with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been
RMB1,820,000 (2011: RMB351,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of United
States Dollars-denominated trade receivables.

At 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5%
(2011: 5%) against Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been
RMB103,000 (2011: RMB364,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Hong Kong
Dollars-denominated other receivables and cash at bank.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the product of the
Group and they are subject to price changes in the commodity
market. During the year, management did not use any commodity
futures to control the exposure of the Group to price fluctuations
of corn kernel. Instead, purchases are made in bulk at the time
when the market price of corn kernel is considered as low.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates and the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the bank
balances and fixed deposits, details of which have been
disclosed in note 24. As at 31 December 2012, all of the Group’s
interest-bearing financial liabilities are carried at fixed rate which
exposes the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to variable interest rates for cash at bank. Interest
rates had been increased/decreased by 50 basis points (2011:
50 basis points) is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

As at 31 December 2012, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis points) and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after tax for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
RMB1,060,000 (2011: RMB750,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate cash at
bank.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables from
third parties. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
creditability of each of the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limit to each customer. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In determining whether allowance for bad and doubtful debts is
required, the Group takes into consideration the aging status and the
likelihood of collection. Following the identification of doubtful debts, the
responsible sales personnel discuss with the relevant customers and
report on the recoverability, specific allowance is only made for trade
receivable that is unlikely to be collected. In this regards, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that this risk is minimal and adequate
allowance for doubtful debts, if any, has been made in the consolidated
financial statements after assessing the collectability of individual debts.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in the PRC is monitored
closely by management of the Group who will assess the reputation, the
risk of recoverability and the financial information, if any, of the
counterparties before the placing of deposits.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of
the trade and other receivables, with exposures spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB640,000,000 (2011: RMB240,000,000).

At the reporting date, the Group held liquid assets including trade and
other receivables of RMB166,835,000 (2011: RMB146,806,000) that are
expected to readily generate cash flow for managing liquidity risk.
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3  Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HEKRKREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FBESERH)
Liquidity table nREBES R

TRALAEENFTESREEN
EREMA - ZRERAEBAHE
RTFRERF B HANF A EARRR
RenBmmH - TRYRESRR
BRFRMBRAST :

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

68

Total
Within Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flow
AEBRRE
—ENRE —EEME MEZRE BARE REAH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETTT ARETTL ARETT
Group r&E
2012 —E-—C—&
Trade and other payables B R EMERMTR 352,121 - - - 352,121
Loans B
— interest-free — %8 2,437 886 2,659 1,109 7,091
Employee housing deposits EIRERES 26,307 - - - 26,307
380,865 886 2,659 1,109 385,519
2011 —E—-F
Trade and other payables B o5 REMERNT 141,855 - - - 141,855
Loans R
— interest-free —&8 1,551 886 2,659 1,995 7,091
Employee housing deposits BIRERES 26,307 - - - 26,307
169,713 886 2,659 1,995 175,253
Company NG|
2012 —E-CF
Other payables HnpE 1,509 - - - 1,509
2011 —B—-f
Other payables Hit BRI 4,444 = = = AL
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Financial risk management (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis or using prices from observable current
market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

(e) Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the cost of capital.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in
note 2, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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FERR
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty (Continued)

4.1

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Note 2.9(d) describes that trade and bills receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows as expected by
management discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a

material impairment loss may arise.

Valuation on inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have been
suffered from any impairment in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.8. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items.
The management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods, work-in-progress and raw materials primarily on
the estimated future selling price and market conditions. Where
the estimates of the net realisable value are less than expected, a

material allowance may arise.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and

liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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4  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of 4 EARSTHHAFRGFTHBAEEREN
estimation uncertainty (Continued) FERE (&)
4.1 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) 41 HETHBEENEZERER(AE)
(c) Income taxes and deferred tax (Continued) (c) FisBiRIELERIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and BETHREEERBBER
tax loss are recognised when management considers it is FANECHEEERSEE
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which BERABEBRAIERERR
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the MEREEHFEEREEER T
expectation is different from the original estimate, such SR - MTEH & ERE M
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and AR Al EREE SR EZ
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate is changed. 5T 3R 2 B) B A RS RE B

THAERBIAX HER o

(d)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (d W% BERZEBHAER
FH
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives REBERERBREEME
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and TS R 7% 1 O i 5T P 45 FR 48 B
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of REBTERS - A5 TR
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar BUE RO TE - K
nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of EREHERBFHERAIERS
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to BAMED o % fd 5t Al ge A RHY
severe industry cycles. Management will adjust the depreciation H R T AL RETEA N
charge where useful lives are different to that of previously WITE MR ERNEE - T2
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or & 1% 7 7] {55 FA 4F B ER 5E BT 51
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. FHTRRARTERS - 5k

WIS B BERK T E R
i L2 B RIERAS IR E ©

5 Turnover and segments information 5 EXBERIHER
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows: REBRAFEREXBSITAT :
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Cornstarch and ancillary corn-refined products FORBID R E AT L EIZE S 2,435,829 2,112,086
Lysine and its related products RN EEEER 569,462 687,972
Starch-based sweetener BD 1R 208,862 145,054
Electricity and steam BAIKEA 66,178 73,759
Modified starch BMRY 21,167 -
3,301,498 3,018,871
The chief operating decision maker of the Group has been identified as the AEETZELERRARERESE EF
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal report in order to assess eeEHAKRENRNIRSE - UFHEES
performance of and allocate resources to the operating segments. BHNRBERSEERESLEHE - ERE
Management has determined the operating segments based on these reports. ERBZEMEEELENE -
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Turnover and segments information (Continued)

The Board considers the business segmentation from product perspective.
Management assesses the performance of cornstarch, lysine, stared-based
sweetener, electricity and steam and modified starch.

Cornstarch — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch and
ancillary corn-refined products
Lysine — the manufacture and sale of lysine and its

related products

the manufacture and sale of starch-based
sweetener

the production and sale of electricity and
steam

the manufacture and sale of modified starch

Starch-based sweetener —

Electricity and steam —

Modified starch —

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of adjusted operating profit. This measurement basis excludes the
effects of non-recurring expenditure from the operating segments, such as
impairments when the impairment is the result of an isolated, non-recurring
event. Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the management. Other information
provided, except as noted below, to the management is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Total segment assets exclude income tax recoverable and deferred tax assets
and total segment liabilities exclude income tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities as these are managed on a central basis. These form part of the
reconciliation to total assets and total liabilities per consolidated statement of
financial position.

Sales between segments are carried out on an arm’s length basis. The
revenue from external parties reported to the management is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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5 Turnover and segments information (Continued) 5 EXBERIHER(HE)

Starch-based Electricity Modified
Cornstarch Lysine sweetener and steam starch  Unallocated Total

TKRH REM RE  BAREN  2ERB AAE &%
RMBOOO ~ RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB00O  RMBIOOO
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETE  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

For the year ended BE-Z--H+C-R

31 December 2012 =t-ALEE
TURNOVER BEE

Total sales HEBE 2,449,056 569,462 208,862 213,557 21,167 - 3,462,104

Inter-segment sales PEEEE (13,227) - - (147,379) - - (160,606)
External sales HOMHE 2,435,829 569,462 208,862 66,178 21,167 - 3,301,498
Segment results NHEE 185,906 183,828 8,705 10,010 4714 (134,367) 258,796
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& ki 20,906 20,305 5,827 15,916 54 6,129 69,137
For the year ended BE-3--%1ZR

31 December 2011 =t-ALEE
TURNOVER 258

Total sales HESBS 2,112,086 687,972 145,054 251,455 - - 3,196,567

Inter-segment sales PEREE - - - (177,696) = = (177,696)
External sales HohHE 2,112,086 687,972 145,054 73,759 - - 301887
Segment results DHEE 194,203 252,201 5,111 2,835 - (150,958) 303,392
Depreciation and amortisation WER#E 18,635 20,083 4714 15,765 - 6,059 65,256
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5 Turnover and segments information (Continued) 5 EBXBERIBER(E)

Starch-based Electricity Modified
Cornstarch Lysine sweetener  and steam starch  Unallocated Total

KRB BEH BOE  RARER SERD AR &it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2012 BR=B--FE+-A=1-H
Segment assets NEBE 743,912 167,827 119,146 128,580 79,311 1,200,739 2,439,515
Including: @}E‘ :
Interest in an associate REtE R AR = = = = = = =

Additions to property, plant and //J\\E?’JJ% BB Rk
equipment and prepaid lease  SRE A RTER

payments HER 150,798 39,982 20,178 1,664 13,954 131,220 357,796
Segment liabilities NEaE 155,654 15,761 14,925 31,844 15,229 322,604 556,017
Including: B
Borrowings e - - - - - 7,001 7,091
Employee housing deposits BTRERA - - - - - 26,307 26,307
Deferred income ;Eum - - - 17,722 - 8,908 26,630

As at 31 December 2011 RZE--%+tZA=1-H
Segment assets DEHEE 570,518 116,437 106,348 163,882 - 1,056,194 2,013,379
Including: B
Interest in an associate =R SR RANER - - - - - 41,135 41,135
Additions to property, plantand ~ FEWZ « BER

equipment and prepaid lease REARTER

payments HEH 23,871 4,328 29,449 1,352 - 21,407 80,407
Segment liabilities PHEE 95,995 19,589 25,106 51,803 - 133,597 326,090
Including: At
Borrowings B3R - - - - - 7,091 7,091
Employee housing deposits BIRERES - - - - - 26,307 26,307
Deferred income ERMA - - - 17,598 - 9,09 26,693
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5 Turnover and segments information (Continued) 5 EXBERIHER(E)
A reconciliation of results of reportable segments to profit before taxation is A R 73 B B 5 48 B BR B A AR A9 AR 10
provided as follows: T

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—BHLFE

2012 2011

—E——F —E=——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Results of reportable segments RS D EBEEE 393,163 454,350
Unallocated income Ko BCUA 30,073 6,574
Unallocated expenses AOEEAX (164,440) (157,532)
Total segment results DEPLE LS 258,796 303,392
Finance income BE LA 32,563 13,316
Finance costs BhE A (318) (512)
Share of result of an associate FEME—REFE R RIEE (2,465) (543)
Profit before taxation O IRANE 288,576 315,653

Note: Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of government grants and
corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to individual segments.

The amounts provided to the Board with respect to total assets are measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

HEBRMIERBR AT —B—FFR

Bzt : ROBUARAZ AR EEBERED R
Z (BRI 5 ZPEV BT BY B (b KA ©

MEFERHAHBEENSE  Hit 8
RESHUBRRAERE R - ZFEE

A By & BIED L ©
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5 Turnover and segments information (Continued) 5 EBXBERIBER(E)
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as follows: AR E D BB ERLEENLRMAT

As at 31 December

76

R+=HA=+—A8
2012 2011
—E-—CF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Reportable segments’ assets A HREDEEE 1,238,776 957,185
Unallocated: RAOER :
Prepaid lease payments A ER 99,971 59,082
Deposit for acquisition of prepaid lease WEFEMAERNRES
payments 80,000 47,249
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEME - BE REENRES
plant and equipment 21,699 -
Interest in an associate R—REE QAR - 41,135
Pledged bank deposits B MIRITIF K 2,500 2,683
Fixed deposits with maturity period over = A A EEHFR
three months 340,000 450,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBEEEY 459,266 374,539
Other unallocated assets HEMADEEE 197,303 81,506
Total segment assets DEPEEE 2,439,515 2,013,379
Income tax recoverable AL B A5 B 1,043 -
Deferred tax assets RIERITEE B 1,254 -
Total assets as per consolidated statement of EHMBRARTHEEE
financial position 2,441,812 2,013,379

The amounts provided to the Board with respect to total liabilities are

measured in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the

segment.
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5 Turnover and segments information (Continued) 5 EXBERIHER(HE)
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as follows: ARESBHEEELE BOHENAT

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H

2012 2011

—E——F —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Reportable segments’ liabilities ARG D EPE & 233,413 192,493
Unallocated: RO

Employee housing deposits BETRERERZS 26,307 26,307

Borrowings B 7,091 7,091

Other unallocated liabilities HEtARHEAE 289,206 100,199

Total segment liabilities AHEEEE 556,017 326,090

Income tax payable S TSR 19,495 30,533

Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE = 619

Total liabilities as per consolidated statement of & GBIk E FHIEE &

financial position 575,512 357,242
The revenue from external customers in the PRC for the year ended 31 BHE_T——-F+ZA=1+—HIEFE XK
December 2012 is RMB2,999,644,000 (2011: RMB2,768,860,000), and the 8 WA RBEFEFRARBARE
revenue from external customers from other countries is RMB301,854,000 2,999,644,000( =T — —F: AR
(2011: RMB250,011,000). 2,768,860,0007T) ' 12K B E B RINREF

FE A A AR 301,854,000 ( —F——
£ AR¥250,011,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2012, the total of non-current assets other than interest in RZT—ZF+ZA=1+—8 BR—XRH
an associate and deferred tax assets located in the PRC is RMB1,065,456,000 ERANE R JOEEBIEEEIN - LR
(2011: RMB642,338,000), and the total of these non-current assets located in WIERE A ERE /AR 1,065,456,000
other countries is RMB99,000 (2011: RMB141,000). T(ZZ——%: AR%642,338,0007T)

MUREMERNERBDEERBELARE
99,0007T(=ZF——4 : AR¥141,0007T) °
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6 Other income and gains 6 HtARKzE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Government grants (note (i), (i) and (iii)) B A B (B RE ) ~ (i) K (i) 4,152 2,874
Amortisation of steam connection income and 2R B U R B e B 8
government grants (note 29) (FfizE29) 3,205 2,999
Realised gain arising on injecting property, A—KEENREADE  BEK
plant and equipment and land use right R RREE AT EM
as capital to an associate EENE SRR 379 427
Gain on sales of scrap coal and oil SHE BB KB H A e 3,443 2,774
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BB &R
equipment ez (E518) 214 (2,302)
Loss on re-measurement of previously held DR E— KRB R A%
equity interest upon step acquisition of BT E LR ARNER
a subsidiary (note 34) Z B8 (MisE34) (4,012)
Gain on a bargain purchase of a subsidiary HEBEWE —ZRHEB AR Z IS
(note 34) (MI7¥34) 15,833 -
Others Efth, 7,636 4,344
30,850 11,116
Note: Bfex -

78

(ii)

(iii)

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the government grants mainly represented
the followings:

(a) the government subsidy of approximately RMB1,757,000 was paid by
S TETEUS (Shouguang City Finance Bureau) for the supply of steam to
domestic households in winter.

(b)  the government grant of approximately RMB1,459,000 was paid by & T
BB (Linging City Finance Bureau) for supporting domestic business of
the Group.

(c)  the government grant of approximately RMB830,000 was paid by §&/& 1
B (Linging City Finance Bureau) for supporting the application of
energy-saving technology of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the government grants mainly represented
the followings:

(a) the government subsidy of approximately RMB1,730,000 was paid by &
m 8 B B (Shouguang City Finance Bureau) for the supply of steam to
domestic households in winter.

(b) the government grant of approximately RMB688,000 was paid by & ¢ &1
B /@ (Shouguang City Finance Bureau) for promoting export trading.

(c) the government grant of approximately RMB400,000 was paid by Fg)& i &1
B3 (Linging City Finance Bureau) for supporting new and advance business

of the Group.

The above government grants were granted at the discretion of the government
and were not recurring in nature.
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BRI T

7 Finance income

7 BEWA

2012 2011

—E——fF —ET——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFIT

Interest income on bank deposits RITEREA S M A 32,563 13,191
Interest income on loan receivable FEWE FHF) B A - 125
32,563 13,316

8 Finance costs

Interest on discounted bills

8 RERK
2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBT T

AR EERHF S 318

2011
—T——fF
RMB’000
ARETT

512

9 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

9  BRBLAIFE

BRAIFEE R (GA) THIRIA

2012 2011

—E—C—F —T——%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BERZETE 67,571 63,741

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE T AE &R 1,566 1,515

Total depreciation and amortisation ITEREHAEE 69,137 62,256

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME - BE R

and equipment (M=), B8 (214) 2,302

Net foreign exchange loss bE B 1RFRE 873 1,176

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RESTHNFERA 2,755,757 2,416,485

Operating lease payments KEHESTE 301 379
Employee benefits expense including directors’ EESEFFZAEZEEMS

emoluments (note 11) (BIEE11) 96,641 100,919

Research and development expenses R RFAZEER 4,269 1,165

Auditor’'s remuneration % 25 il 257 B 1,259 1,219
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10 Income tax expenses 10

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group entities’
profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during both years.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

8B

HRARENERNMEFEALRESSE
ELERRIAE - M EREBNSHRED
B o BINNSHAIRRFE A EEERA
RSB EEBRRORITRHEH -

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT

PRC corporate income tax HR B PTIE
— Current year — REE 68,367 82,889
— Under provision in prior years — BEFERETR 161 626
Deferred tax (note 27) EEFTE (KizE27) (1,873) 1,961
66,655 85,476

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation as

follows:

AEF BRSO A ER AT AE SRR T

2012 2011
—2—_—F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit before taxation BR A5 AT A 288,576 315,653
Tax at the corporate income tax rate at 25% AR EMEHE25% (ZF——F :
(2011: 25%) 25%) s E R IE 72,144 78,913
Tax effect of: TEEENHIEHE -
— An associate’s result reported net of tax — BN R 2MES (FOBRFHIE) 616 136
— Different tax rate — TRBE (956) 1,157
— Expenses that are not deductible for — PRIHIHF
tax purpose 1,883 5,719
— Income not subject to tax — BERBWA (6,391) (1,075)
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax — BRI ARECHER ZHBER
losses (802) -
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — BAFERAE 161 626
66,655 85,476

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
the retained profits of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these foreign-invested enterprises
and it is probable that such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
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11 Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ 11 EERIHX(BEESH)
emoluments)
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Wages and salaries TERS® 67,408 71,216
Pension cost RBRARESEHR 13,782 13,345
Staff welfares BT @A 15,451 16,358
96,641 100,919
No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable by N7 A 4558 U5 B £ R AT R VRS SR LR 2R 4R
the Group in future years. BRI RETHR »

12 Emoluments for directors and five highest paid individuals 12 ESBRIEEEHFALHHME
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=BS
Basic Retirement

salaries and Discretionary  benefit and
allowance bonus contribution 2011

EXHe BB
RERM [k RfERA SRR —B-—F  —F-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREBTR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Executive directors; HTES:
Mr. Tian Qixiang BERLE 516 - 750 - 1,266 1,266
Mr. Yu Yingquan FH2EAE 300 - 750 - 1,050 1,050
Mr. Gao Shijun St ELAE 360 - 750 47 1,157 1,141
Mr. Liu Xianggang BRI L E 252 - 750 46 1,048 1,032

Independent non-executive BV IEHITEE :

directors:
Ms. Dong Yanfeng £33 - 50 - - 50 50
Ms. Yu Shumin (note) KR L (i) - - - - - 38
Mr. Cao Zenggong BN L - 30 - - 30 30
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken KRBT - 81 - - 81 83
1,428 161 3,000 93 4,682 4,690
2011 === 1,428 201 3,000 61 4,690
Note: Retired on 4 September 2011 fizE : R=T——F N AMARK
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12 Emoluments for directors and five highest paid individuals
(Continued)

12

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four
(2011: four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the

EERAEREFATHME (&)

(b) EHEBEHFAL
AEEREBRSHFALH  OE(=
T——F:0R)BEARFNES

HENHER EXOAITZI - BT

remaining one (2011: one) individual were as follows: —&(ZT—F: —R)REFAL
MBS
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Basic salaries and allowance HEAR e RERM 683 669
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFIFT 2R 12 10
695 679

The emolument was within RMB1,000,000.

% Z & B £ £ A R ¥ 1,000,000 7T SA

7 o
(c) During the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no emoluments (c) BE=Z——FKk=-FT—F+=A
have been paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest =+—HILFE AEEHERES
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or FALERESHEATIZNME  (EAER
as compensation for loss of office. BN A I AR E B SR EB S E A
KEBALAFE o
13 Earnings per share 13 SBRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the ordinary ARATEBEREE ARLERERRET T
equity holders of the Company is based on the following data: WA T 8UEEE -
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥ETT
Earnings 25
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic FUAGTE SRR AR EFIHZEF|
earnings per share (Profit for the year (ARl IFE AENL
attributable to equity holders of the Company) AN EF)HE) 219,647 228,990
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BRI T

13

14

15

Earnings per share (Continued)

13 BKREBR(H)

Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B GTESRERZ TR
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings T AR i T 8

per share

5,825,455 5,779,680

No diluted earnings per share has been presented because no dilutive
potential ordinary shares exist for both 2012 and 2011.

Dividends

Proposed final dividend (note (i) and (ii)):

FORAREARCE. (M E (i) B (i1))

14

BN T —FR T —FIHRAEEN
AMEET B - SR SREERT -

RE

2012
—E——F

2011
—T——F

RMB'000
AR¥ETIT

RMB’000
ARBTR

HKO0.67 cents (2011: HK0.67 cents) per FR% A% 0.67 1L
ordinary share —E——F :0.678L) 31,961 31,393
Final dividend paid during the year: RAFEEZMARBARKRE :
HKO0.67 cents (2011: HK0.67 cents) per ST E @A 0.67 1L
ordinary share —Z——& : 0.678) 31,582 32,146

Note:

(i) A final dividend of HKO0.67 cents per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

(ii) The final dividend proposed after the end of the year has not been recognised as
a liability as at the end of the reporting period.

Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company to the extent of RMB5,146,000 (2011:
RMB38,316,000).

HEBRMIERBR AT —B—FFR

15

B EE

(i) EREZREIRAMREFR0.67EM -
ARBRRNEERFBFAS LHAER
TAEE °

(ii) RNERERBATRARABREL RHERR
HERRNEIME -

RAFEREE ABGER
AR RIS FFE AEEEEBARKS,146,000

T(ZZE——% : AR¥38,316,00070) E7E
RNRARFHRERFERE
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16 Property, plant and equipment 16 ¥ BERSZE
Group
rEE
Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery  construction Total
EERE
BF BEREE RE HitE e BF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT T ARETTT AREFT
Cost A
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F—-F—H 319,393 571,763 9,191 37,263 2,037 939,647
Additions NE 823 1,334 1,926 890 59,360 64,333
Transfers #2 405 26,038 - 166 (26,609) -
Reclassification BN (7,981) 7,981 - - - -
Disposals e (996) (7,284) (500) (955) - (9,825)
At 31 December 2011 and RZE——F+ZA=1-A
1 January 2012 k=Z-—%-f-H 311,644 599,832 10,527 37,364 34,788 994,155
Additions upon acquisition WERE 5,400 1,566 663 27 254 8,154
Additions e - 2,963 2,832 4,962 290,642 301,399
Transfers #e 7,363 52,627 1,220 2,310 (63,520) -
Disposals L& = (2,451) (576) (210) - (3,237)
At 31 December 2012 R=2-—F+=A=1- 324,407 654,537 14,666 44,697 262164 1300471
Accumulated depreciation and R ERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2011 R=F——%-A—-H 99,500 279,759 4,101 15,575 - 398,935
Depreciation charge for the year FRTEZA 12,011 45,560 1,460 4710 - 63,741
Disposals e (932) (4,034) (477) (738) - (6,181)
At 31 December 2011 and W_E——F+-A=1—H
1 January 2012 k=Z-—%-8-H 110,579 321,285 5,084 19,547 - 456,495
Depreciation charge for the year FRNEER 11,956 49,043 1742 4,830 - 67,571
Disposals e - (1,175) (533) (206) - (1914)
At 31 December 2012 R=F-—F+=A=1-A 12253 369,153 6293 24,171 = 522,152
Net carrying value REEE
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-F=1-H 201,872 285,384 8,373 20,526 262,164 778,319
At 31 December 2011 R=B——F+=-A=1+—H 201,065 278,547 5,443 17,817 34,788 537,660
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BRI T

17 Prepaid lease payments 17 FBANHEER
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E——F —E=——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Cost R
At 1 January n—HA—H 69,099 53,025
Additions upon acquisition WEERE 5,800 =
Additions NE 42,443 16,074
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 117,342 69,099
Accumulated amortisation Rt E
At 1 January w—HA—H 10,017 8,502
Amortisation charge for the year FAEHEER 1,566 1,515
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 11,583 10,017
Net book amount IREFE
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 105,759 59,082
Land in the PRC held under medium-term lease &/ EAFE & pA fh BIRE A &9 3 105,759 59,082
Analysed for reporting purposes: EE2MABMN AT :
Current asset MEEE 2,500 1,512
Non-current asset EREEE 103,259 57,570
105,759 59,082
During the year ended 31 December 2012, additions of prepaid lease HE-ZT——H+-A=+T—HILEFE &
payments included an amount of RMB7,249,000 transferred from deposit for REESREOENEEE WEEMHES KRR
acquisition of prepaid lease payments. BoE A AR 7,249,000 7T °
18 Subsidiaries 18 HEALF
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) HHBLTNKRE

Company
/N
2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT

Unlisted investments, at cost EETIRE (REKA) 159,121 159,121
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18 Subsidiaries (Continued)

86

(a)

(b)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2012:

Name of companies

DEHE

Sourcestar Worldwide Inc.
Sourcestar Worldwide Inc.

China Starch Group Limited
(“China Starch Group”)
TERHEEFR AR
(T ERMEE )

Shandong Shouguang Juneng
Golden Corn Development
Co., Ltd.":2
(“Golden Corn”)

IWERSHERSTRER
BRAR "2
(T&EX])

Shouguang Golden Far East
Modified Starch
Company Limited" 4
(“Golden Far East”)
BRAE "

(E3:33))

Linging Deneng Golden Corn
Bio Limited"®
BREREESEREMBRARS

2w N o=

Place of
incorporation

R AR 3Lt 36

BV
KBHEARES

Hong Kong
BB

PRC

R

PRC
i

PRC
i

Interests are held indirectly by the Company.
The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise.
The entity is an equity joint venture enterprise.
The entity was acquired by step-acquisition during the year (note 19 and 34).

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, non-trade, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Place of
operation

Hong Kong
&S

Hong Kong
)

PRC

R

PRC
i

PRC
i

18 2= (&)

(a) RHBLRMNEKRE (&)
RZE——F+-_A=+—HHKE
NERHNGET :

Issued and fully

paid up/registered Interest
capital held (%)
BRIRBRE/ MR
HEMER (%)
US$240 100
ordinary shares 100

240 LA & AR
HK$1 ordinary share 100
1T ERR 100
RMB480,000,000 100
AR 480,000,000 70 100
US$9,600,000 100
9,600,000 7T 100
RMB200,000,000 91
AR 200,000,0007T 91

PO T

ZE
ZE

ZE BB F 5 B B (B =

Principal activities

TEXK

Investment holding
REZR

Investment holding

REEK

Manufacturing and sale of
cornstarch, lysine and
related products

S R SHE TR -
FEARE R EARER

Research, development,
manufacture and sale
of modified starch and
related products

e EERHE
SRS RIEEER

Manufacturing and sale of
cornstarch and related
products

SLERHEERBRY R
HHEER

AR EIREERAEE -
ﬂmﬁ

—RBIIERE -
REBREDRE -

19%34) ©

(b) MFEWHIELDARE
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BRI T

19

Interest in an associate

19 R—FREEQRNER

Group
REE
2012 2011
—E-—_F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Unlisted investment, at cost FEETIRE (RAA) = 38,186
Less: Unrealised gain arising on injecting B OEAE - BE R AEN
property, plant and equipment and THUERREEREE
land use right as capital contribution MEARREIR WS - (1,846)
Share of post-acquisition profits L B 1% e (5 7 - 4,795
- 41,135
2012 2011
—E-——fF —F—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Carrying value as at 1 January R—A—BE@AE 41,135 41,251
Share of losses FE(h 1R (2,465) (543)
Realised gain arising on injecting property, EAY) - BRE R ERE
plant and equipment and land use right T RRIERIEE
as capital contribution MmEERNE ZRIkES 379 427
Disposal upon step acquisition of a subsidiary PERKENBARRLEE (39,049) -
Carrying value as at 31 December +—A=+—HKEAE - 41,135

The registered capital of Golden Far East was originally owned as to 49% by
Golden Corn (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and 51%
by the joint venture partner, Ingredion Incorporated. On 25 October 2012,
China Starch Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
an equity transfer agreement with the joint venture partner to acquire its 51%
registered capital of Golden Far East. As Golden Corn and China Starch
Group are both wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, immediately upon
completion of the acquisition, the Group holds 100% interest in the registered
capital of Golden Far East. The acquisition was completed on 21 November
2012. Details of the business combination are set out in note 34.

SEREAMEARN49% R EHE EK(ARA
RIZEEZENBRAR) A  51%EME
AN Bl g & & ¥ Ingredion Incorporated
B -RZB—Z—F+A=1+HA  FERH
EB(ARARZENBRR) BHE BB
—IEREE R - WE SRR 51% 1
B FEREFRRFERDEERBAD
RIZEMBAR @ BEZEBRETKE - &
SEREE S REEMEARA 100% #a © %
KR ——F+—A=+—H=%EK - %
EE GBI FES4
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19

20

21

22

88

Interest in an associate (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate for the period up to
the date of deemed disposal is as follows:

19

R—BE AT WER (&)

AEEBEARNBEERELE B EHRED
MIEERBERnT -

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities FER=NE
Revenue A

Loss for the period/year R FEEE

2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
- 133,598

- (45,882)

169,326 194,273
(5,030) (1,108)

Deposit for acquisition of prepaid lease payments 20 WERANHERNRESR
The amount represents the initial deposit paid to the Municipal Government of B A FKIE 15 Bt WU AL 7A 55 ¢ M b R i [m1 58
Shouguang for the acquisition of a parcel of land located in Shouguang. MBS RES -
Inventories 21 FE
Group
rEHE
2012
—E2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Raw materials R A4 H 96,750 140,605
Work in progress EE SR 19,478 20,785
Finished goods RIBK G 66,278 45,675
182,506 207,065

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost of goods
sold” amounted to RMB2,755,757,000 (2011: RMB2,416,485,000).

Trade and other receivables

22

HRARIRBEEEHERA] WFEK
XA ANER#ED2 755 757,000 (=8 ——4 :
AR 2,416,485,000 7)) ©

B 5 R HEEYK

Group Company
rEE AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——fF —E——4F —E-——F —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRT AREBTRI AR®Tr AREBTT
Trade receivables B S REWGR 142,925 126,437 - =
Bank acceptance bills RITERNEE 220,353 147,160 - =
Other receivables H b e W GR 23,910 20,369 - =
387,188 293,966 - —

The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 60 days to
customers.
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BRI T

22 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is
shown as follows:

22 HBHRHEMBEWK(E)

AT BRI ERE S UK BRI DT :

Group Company
rEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—F —B——fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AR¥TR ARETT
0 - 30 days TE=1H 109,230 89,250 - -
31-60 days =+—F/+H 9,387 21,533 - -
61-90 days AT—ZEZN+H 10,862 6,737 - -
Over 90 days N+BHE 13,446 8,917 - -
142,925 126,437 - -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the creditability of
each of the potential customer and defines their respective credit limits
accordingly. Credit limit of each customer is reviewed monthly. Credit qualities
of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired have been assessed with
reference to historical information on the default rates, based on which no
impairment provision is considered to be necessary.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB33,695,000 (2011: RMB9,293,000) which
are past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers of whom there is no recent history of default.

Ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired is
shown as follows:

EEMREMHELA  AREEHIERE
EEPNEREREEABERPRERE
RE - TRPWERRASTAELMRE - X
ERHSRENEZRERNEEERESR
BERBORERETE  MKBEEEE
B RABAELBERE

NEEESRUREHBERDAESAR
#33,695000t( =T — —F: AR
9,293,000 7T ) W FEMEER - BEARIBABEE
HEATERE ZSEREBTITEEOL
B2 BBIREER -

B I HELERENE 5 BB KRR
DT

Group Company
AEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—E--F —Z—F —E-——F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT ARET T ARETT
1-30 days —&=+1+H 9,387 - - -
31-60 days =+—F+H 10,862 - - -
61-90 days AT—ZEN+H 5,036 376 - -
Over 90 days N+HBAE 8,410 8,917 - —
33,695 9,293 - -

Included in the other receivables is an amount due from non-controlling
interests of RMB12,284,000 (2011: RMB12,965,000). As at 31 December
2011, trade receivables also included an amount due from an associate of
RMB32,745,000. Detail of balances with related companies are set out in note
35(c). No impairment has been made to receivables from related companies.

HAh e YR B S MR IR AR R A e R IEA
R ¥12,284000t( =T ——F: AR¥
12,965,000 ) W =T ——F + = A
=t+—0 BZRKZNBIEEK KB
NalE 5 ERFRA R 32,745,000 ¢ ° 8
A R4 SR FE 1B B A BI aE 35(c) © FE Uk R iE
A K FOEN & AE A RDRE o
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22 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 22 EBEZREMEWR(E)

Bank acceptance bills

Group Company
REE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —T——F ZEB-ZF =—IZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETTT AR®ET T ARBT T
Endorsed bills HEEER 186,784 30,167 - -
Bills on hand FHEER 33,569 116,993 - -
220,353 147,160 - -

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of 180 days (2011:
180 days). There is no recent history of default on bank acceptance bills. As at
31 December 2012, no bank acceptance bills (2011: RMB1,900,000) were
pledged to banks for securing bills payables.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, all other receivables aged between 0-30
days.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

BITERAEE—RIBHRA—B/\TH(Z
T——F: —FGNTH) - RITARLZEER
MW EENLE R TE——F+_-H4
=t+—8 WESTALZER(CZ——F:
AR ¥ 1,900,000 7T) B K1 F R1T1E A R
ERHIEA o

R_E——FR_T——F+_A=+—

B BRI A/TE="1TH -

B 5 K& E b UK BREE JA T 51 & %5t
B :

Group Company
AEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E——F === —E——F =g —=—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%BTrT ARETT AR%®Tx ARETx
Hong Kong Dollars BIT 97 97 - =
United States Dollars E7T 26,042 15,290 - =
Renminbi AR 361,049 278,579 - -
387,188 293,966 = -
23 Pledged bank deposits 23 EEMEITER

The bank deposits were pledged to a bank for securing bills payable. The
pledged bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi.
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24 Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with

maturity period over three months

Group
rEE

2012

—E—-—fF
RMB’000
ARETR

Cash at bank and in hand RITRERFHERS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI T

RERhBESEYR=EAULE
BER

Company
A H
2011 2012 2011
—E-—-F ZET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

RMB’000
ARKETT

(note (i) and (iii)) (BA=E (1) R Giii)) 279,266 194,539 3,152 8,576
Short-term bank deposits EERITER

(note (ii) and (iii)) (B3 (if) R (iii)) 180,000 180,000 - =
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBEEEEY 459,266 374,539 3,152 8,576
Fixed deposits with initial maturity — REI#IH & =1E 8 LA L&)

period over three months TE HATF 5% (B aE (i) R (iii))

(note (i) and (iii)) 340,000 450,000 = =

799,266 824,539 3,152 8,576

Cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposits with maturity period over three

months are denominated in the following currencies:

A2 MRS EEN R =87 A LEHFRA
TIIEEE

Group Company
AEE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--% -2——% =-B-=F =-T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTT AR¥TR AR®TT
United States Dollars ETT 10,354 484 - -
Hong Kong Dollars BT 3,517 8,660 3,152 8,576
Renminbi (note (iv)) AR (FIFE (iv) 785,395 815,395 - —
799,266 824,539 3,152 8,576
Note: B EE
(i) Cash at banks earns interest at daily floating rates of bank deposit. (i) SRITIRG THIRIRITERA BZ B REVF & ©

(ii) These fixed deposits earn interest of 4.6%—4.8% (2011: 2.6%—-4.5%) per annum.

(iif) The bank balances are deposited with credit worthy banks with no recent history
of defaults. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate
to their fair values.

(iv)  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are deposited with
banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the government
of the PRC.

(if) HEERFRBFEMNELI6E48E(=F
——F 26 F45F) REFAS °

@iy RTBBRDERNBELEEOLENE
FERT B RREFEYNREESR
HAFEMESE -

(v) AEBUAREHENRITESRRERTY
FARBERIT - BZEUAREEHER
BHABBINERBESE LT RAET
o B AR A A1 0 9 BEE AR B R AR 1
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25 JRA

25 Share capital

Number of Share
CLHET( capital
RHEEE B2
‘000 HK$'000
TFix T
Authorised EE
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 RZE——FR{R_F——4F
+=—A=+—8 10,000,000 1,000,000

Number of
shares Share capital
RBEE &S
RMB’000
ARETT

‘000 HK$'000
T AT

Issued and fully paid ERTRER

At 31 December 2010 and 2011 RIE—TFER_T——4F

+=—A=+—H 5,779,680 577,968 515,234

Shares issued under the scrip dividend 1B AR 2521
scheme ELSawd ) 103,417 10,341 8,436
At 31 December 2012 RZEBE——F+-_A=+—H 5,883,097 588,309 523,670

92

On 23 July 2012, the Company issued and allotted 103,417,465 new fully paid
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$0.235 to the shareholders who
elected to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for the 2011 final
dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme announced by the Company
on 23 March 2012. The new ordinary shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company. The total amount of dividend
settled with the issuance of scrip dividend was HK$19,824,000.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RZZB——FtA=+=0  REARAR
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g ANARHRF M 0.23578 T RE R MR 2
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B0 10BTTHFEEIRD - L BBRNREH
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BRI T

26 Reserves

26 f#1E

Share Special Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AR 518 Rl EXRE RitEE &5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT AR ARETT ARETET
note (i) (note (ii))
(PF3E (i) (BF&E (i)
At 1 January 2011 R-_Z——F—H—H 274,386 108,651 16,730 (37,686) 362,081
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (38,316) (38,316)
2010 final dividend T -ZERERE (32,146) - - - (32,146)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZZE—F+=-—A=+—H 242,240 108,651 16,730 (76,002) 291,619
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—HA—H 242,240 108,651 16,730 (76,002) 291,619
Loss for the year AEEEE = = = (5,146) (5,146)
2011 final dividend —E——FRERE (31,582) - - - (31,582)
Issue of shares under the scrip REBARRK S5 E
dividend scheme BT Z 1D 11,388 - - - 11,388
At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+-A=+—H 222,046 108,651 16,730 (81,148) 266,279
Note: Bt E

0]

(i)

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve of the Company and the Group represents (a) the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share premium issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired upon the Group’s reorganisation; and (b) the difference
between the consideration paid by the direct subsidiary for the entire registered
capital of the indirect subsidiary and the amount of registered capital of the
indirect subsidiary.

HEBRMIERBR AT —B—FFR

(i) REFESHEARE EEBERZAMAL
AR ESTRRT - AR R & A48 B 7T
HRABR R D IR SR A R - HERN EREAR S
DikE - ARBEFENEEENRBAEE
B B B ET o

(if) KRR RAEBEORERIERE - (ARA
P T RAREERED S EEEREE
A8 5 BT U B PR BB 2 ) AR AR B R £ 5 1B
REZRNER  RbO)EEMNBEIF®ME
EHE QR 2 EE M E AR R E R
EMBRRMEMEAR 2R ZRE -
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B HRRME

27

94

Deferred taxation 27

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences
under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial position are,
after appropriate offsetting, as follows:

IEFER R

BEIEPRAS B Th st B R 1 Z R AR IR B EA TR
REEHRZAIE SR L ER LB ERM

BB o

- B®

BEEEER A BRRRNERN

Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E-—_—F =E——%E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE = (619)
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE 1,254 -
1,254 (619)
The movement on deferred tax is as follows: BEERIBR ST ¢

Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
At 1 January n—HA—H (619) 1,342
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated statement =t A /(¥ B ) & 4z & Wk
of comprehensive income 1,873 (1,961)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 1,254 (619)
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BRI T

27 Deferred taxation (Continued) 27 EERIIE ()
The movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to offsetting of IR —B B R EE B RAARA - BEHRIA
balances within the same taxation jurisdiction is as follows: BERBENZSHNOT -
Deferred tax liabilities EELEREBEEE

Group
rEE
Unrealised gain on injecting
property, plant and equipment
and land use right as
capital contribution
EAYE  BERRE

M AREEREE
MEE N RER IR
2012 2011
—E-——fF —Z2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
At 1 January R—A—8 (2,034) (1,927)
Charged to the consolidated statement of B A& fHira W R 0Bk
comprehensive income (98) (107)
Disposal upon step acquisition of a subsidiary PERKE—ZIMEARELHE 2,132 -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H = (2,034)
Deferred tax assets BELERBEE

Group
rEE
Impairment of
property,
plant and
Tax loss equipment Total
" - BER
BBER RAEBRRE A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBT T AREFIT
At 1 January 2011 R-E—%F—AF—H 1,689 1,580 3,269
Charged to the consolidated statement B & #H4R & Was X R
of comprehensive income (1,689) (165) (1,854)
At 31 December 2011 and R-ZT—F+-_A=+—HEK
1 January 2012 —E——F—HF—H - 1,415 1,415
Charged to the consolidated statement B & #f4r & W R HBR

(161)

(161)

of comprehensive income -

At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H

= 1,254 1,254

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The tax loss was fully utilised during the year ended 31 December
2011.

HEBRMIERBR AT —B—FFR

fif 78 AR 2R PE R Bt A B o] IR AR A B A 25 -
HERAEEREERRERECRIBEE - &
BT ——HF+ A=+ RALFEIHE
BIEEE2EIA -
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Borrowings 28 fEX
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Government loan, unsecured BITE R » K 7,091 7,091
Carrying amount payables: FERTRREE :
Within 1 year —FR 2,437 1,551
1to 2 years —FEMF 886 886
210 5 years MEZERF 2,659 2,659
Over 5 years HBiBAF 1,109 1,995
7,091 7,091
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & : ZEREBARBEE F—FA
current liabilities =il gleak ) (2,437) (1,551)
4,654 5,540

Government loan represented government assistance provided to Golden
Corn for its corn refinery production by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in
April 2004. The balance is unsecured, interest free and fully repayable by 6
April 2019. According to the loan agreement, the loan is repayable by 11
annual instalment commencing from 6 April 2009.
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BRI T

29 Deferred income 29 EZEWA

Group
AEE
Steam
connection Government

income grants Total
RREBRBA BBy &%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ~ ARBTT  AREKTET

At 1 January 2011 R-ZZE—F—HF—H 18,350 4,832 23,182
Additions 0 2,060 4,450 6,510
Amortisation for the year FIEHH (2,812) (187) (2,999)
At 31 December 2011 and R—T——&F+—F=+—HF

1 January 2012 —T——F—H—H 17,598 9,095 26,693
Additions il 3,142 - 3,142
Amortisation for the year FIEE (3,018) (187) (3,205)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 17,722 8,908 26,630
Steam connection income represents the payment received/receivable from EEEBRBAERERRAEEMRMERH
customers for the connection of steam pipelines. B FEHK
Government grants represented the payment received from B ;& ™ 8 B B BUT BN E R ERERREESRA KEME
(Linging City Finance Bureau) for the development of the production complex W ER)E T B BB RIFRIE
in Linging.
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30 Trade and other payables

30

B REMENR

Group Company
REE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—EB-——-F —ZT—F —B--F —ZE——%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT AR®ET T ARBT T

Trade payables B SRR 83,162 74,181 - =

Bills payable ANES 2,500 4,583 - =

Total trade and bills payables B S ENHRRENERBEE 85,662 78,764 - -

Advances from customers BRI 106,555 85,994 - =

Deposits DS 15,229 9,747 - =

Sales commission HEMe 2,165 2,608 - =

Other tax payables H fth eI B I8 26,285 22,919 - -

Accrued expenses fEsTEH 7,190 7,337 1,285 1,214

Payroll and welfare payables EfEe kaf 11,028 15,231 224 3,230
Payable for construction and ZEEN

equipment B 209,980 42,315 - =

Others Hith 31,895 1,084 - -

410,327 187,235 1,509 4,444

495,989 265,999 1,509 4,444

As at 31 December 2012, bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits
of RMB2,500,000 (note 23). As at 31 December 2011, bills payable were
secured by pledged bank deposits of RMB2,683,000 and bank acceptance
bills of RMB 1,900,000 respectively.

The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables at the end
of the reporting period:

R-Z——F+=-—A=+—8 BENEEMN
AR % 2,500,000 7T B # # 8R 1717 50 (F &%
2)EHEM - R=T—F+=—A=+—H -
FEF =& 5 B A A R ¥ 2,683,000 7t 2 #F #
$R1T1F 2 A R % 1,900,000 7T $R 17 7 5 =2
TRIEH IR -

AT R s IR E 5 5 R B A R IR AR
BT

Group Company
rEE AAT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—®-=f -T—F =-®-=f _"T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBTT AR¥Tr AR®Tr
0 - 60 days TENTH 64,899 56,476 — =
61-90 days AT—ZENTH 3,809 3,519 - -
Over 90 days N+BRE 16,954 18,769 = =
85,662 78,764 - -

98
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BRI T

30 Trade and other payables (Continued) 30 ESRHEMENSR(E)
The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2011: 80 days). The FENFAEERARNTH(ZE——F:
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all N+H) - REBE §ilE SRR ERBUR -
payables are paid within the credit time frame. VAREIRFTE FE A B BB B ES 21+ -
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are denominated in the B REMEMNREREENA T E8E
following currencies: & :
Group Company
rEE A H
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-—F —T——F C—EBE-—F —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®TR ARBTT
United States Dollars E7T 27,231 8,748 - -
Hong Kong Dollars BIT 1,552 1,482 1,509 1,444
Renminbi AR 467,206 255,769 - 3,000
495,989 265,999 1,509 4,444
31 Employee housing deposits 31 BETIRERES

Deposits received BRRE S

Group
rEE
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBT

2011
—T——fF
RMB’000
ARETT

26,307 26,307

The Group offers quarters to the staff with the aim of promoting long service
with the Group. These quarters are constructed by the Group and offered to
staff for application on a periodic basis. Due to the excess demand of staff
quarters and the relatively substantial construction costs involved, the staff are
required to place housing deposit to the Group. The Group utilises the amount
received from staff as general working capital.

The employee housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable
one month upon the return of the staff quarters by the employee or termination
of employment.

HEBRMIERBR AT —B—FFR

AEERMBTIRHIES  EESBIENE

HRGAEE - EhEERASERE -

HMHE TR - AR ETEERBRM -

BRBARZRAR  BTARARBEHNE

ERES - AEBEFARE B IMRIBAES
ZEED

fm #

BETFRERESDREE  EEFRNRETIR
BETHESEILLERETR—EAAANR
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RIS ERR Mo

Commitments 32 EiE
(a) Commitments for total future minimum lease payments (a) REFTTHRELCEHEENBEER
under non-cancellable operating leases BEENRAIELE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
No later than 1 year —F R 480 417
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FERAFA 493 232
973 649
(b) Commitments in respect of capital expenditure (b) ERBAZAE

Authorised but not contracted for in respect of: 2% HE{BRETAY -

2012
—E——fF

2011
—T——F
RMB’000
AR¥ETT

RMB’000
AR®TR

— property, plant and equipment — W2 - BB R 165,496 -
— prepaid lease payments — BHEER 38,560 =
204,056 =

Contracted but not provided for in respect of: & 5] 4018 R #E 4 -
— property, plant and equipment — W BENERE 267,038 8,826

Share-based payment transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 5 September 2007 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of share capital of the
Company in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company.
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BRI T

34

Business combination

On 25 October 2012, China Starch Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an equity transfer agreement with the joint venture
partner, Ingredion Incorporated, to acquire its 51% registered capital of
Golden Far East. Prior to the acquisition, the registered capital of Golden Far
East was owned as to 49% by Golden Corn (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and 51% by the joint venture partner. The
acquisition was completed on 21 November 2012. Subsequent to the
completion of acquisition, the Group holds 100% interest in the registered
capital of Golden Far East. Golden Far East is principally engaged in the
research and development, manufacture and sale of modified starch and
related products.

The acquisition is expected to enhance the Group’s competitiveness and
strengthen the Group’s distribution network in the PRC.

Details of the acquisition are as follows:

34 EBEH

R=ZT——F+A=+HB FEBHEE
(RARZEMNBRAR)HEEEEMH Ingredion
Incorporated % 5] — E AR i ¥ 3% p ik - WRE
SER51%EMER - RZBRBEZAT - &
REEMEARN49% HE EK(KRAE ZMH
BE2ENBAR)EAR  51%EMEAAIH
BEBHRER  ZBEBBR T ——F+—
AZ+—B%Ek - WETKE  AEERHE
SIRHFFMERA100% s - SRBEEES
BRI AR E DA « EERH

£€® o
=

ZEWEEME S ARERSHEF T - 1M
58 N SR B R B R R 0 20 S AR AE o

ZHEWBFEBT -

RMB’000

Equity interest previously held by the Group REBESRIFE R R 39,049
Loss on re-measuring the previously held FFAEMUA RSB E A

equity interest to fair value included in BERAEE A FENER

other income and gains (4,012)
Fair value of the previously held equity interest at SR A R R UE B B A E

the acquisition date 35,037
Purchase consideration: WEERE :

Cash paid SNRE 20,633

Fair value of the previously held equity interest FRIFRE R A ERNATFE 35,037

Total purchase consideration BB E 55,670
Cash flow arising on acquisition: WHELNRESRE

Cash consideration paid R ERE 20,633

Cash and cash equivalents acquired WA RIREEEY (11,242)

Net cash outflow on acquisition IWREEARNIR ML 5 9,391

REBRNERERAR —B-—FFH
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34 EKEH(H)

RMB'000
ARET T

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and  FrUifE 2 ] 5% 5l & 2 M R IE

34 Business combination (Continued)

liabilities assumed: BEZHEREHE

Property, plant and equipment Y% BB REE 8,154
Prepaid lease payments AR ER 5,800
Inventories FE 7,100
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H h FEUGR 49,432
Cash and cash equivalents RENRRSEEY 11,242
Income tax recoverable AR E SR 1,043
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M FERTFR (11,268)
Total identifiable net assets AIHRFEERTE 71,503
Gain on a bargain purchase of a subsidiary E G NG 6 (15,833)

55,670

No contingent consideration arrangements or contingent liabilities were
identified upon step acquisition.

The acquired business contributed turnover of approximately RMB21,167,000
and net profit after tax of approximately RMB3,602,000 to the Group for the
period from 21 November 2012 to 31 December 2012. If the acquisition had
occurred on 1 January 2012, the contributed turnover and net loss after tax for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would have been approximately
RMB190,493,000 and RMB 1,428,000 respectively.

The Group recognised a loss on re-measurement of previously held equity
interest and a gain on a bargain purchase of approximately RMB4,012,000
and RMB15,833,000 respectively in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012. The gain on a
bargain purchase is mainly attributable to the immediate exit opportunity
offered to the vendor and the consideration that was mutually agreed between
the parties, with reference to the residual value of Golden Far East.

Acquisition-related costs of RMB82,000 are included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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35 Connected transactions and related party transactions

(a)

(b)

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group acquired certain electric equipment of
RMB3,627,000 (2011: nil) from LR FB X EREER AR A7 (Shandong
Shouguang Juneng Electric Co., Ltd.*) (“Juneng Electric”). For
avoidance of doubt, the total amount of purchase agreements entered
into with Juneng Electric was RMB40,882,000. Juneng Electric was
beneficially held as to approximately 54% by IR F B RERE
[ A @] (Shandong Shouguang Juneng Holding Group Co., Ltd.)
(“Juneng Holding Group”) which was in turn owned as to 55% by Mr.
Tian Qixiang (“Mr. Tian”), a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company. Juneng Electric is a connected person of the Company as
defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities and Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). In addition, Mr.
Yu Yingquan, a director of the Company, was also interested in 5%
beneficial interest in Juneng Holding Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the amount due from Juneng Electric is
RMB5,015,000 (2011: nil). Balance is unsecured, interest-free and shall
be settled in accordance with the respective contract terms.

Related party transactions
In addition to above, the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions which are not regarded as connected

transactions as defined under the Listing Rules:

(i)  Transactions with related parties

Sales of cornstarch to an associate

Sales of electricity and steam
to an associate

fﬁ%?&jﬁ 1B
EEBEE T Fali

Purchase of electricity and steam from

non-controlling interests BT
Provision of staffing services to M IEIEAR AR R A s 1
non-controlling interests R %5

35 BERZRBELIRS

(a)

(b)

HEALER

REXS

RAFE AEBHILRSHERS
RERAR(TERER]) KBEETE
Wk - EEARYK3,627,0007T(=
T——F:\E) - ARERM BE
ERERIIUZHEERZEZRSBEAA
R#40,882,0007T - Ef¢ERMH LR
EhEREREEFRAB([EfE
EEH ) ERBEALS4%Em - ME
B EEAREEFELEETHE
£ ARARESFRITRARER) EE
55% i o MIBBBHMARSMAER
AAFEF EmRA( EmARRDBE
% BERERARDAINBEEAT -
BN ARAREETFRELEENE R
HEEEREREE R 5% i o

RZB—ZF+-A=+—0H " Bl
EffER/MNE AR ARYS50150007T
(Z2——F: ) ﬁ%%’é)@%#ﬁﬁﬂ
®E - WERERSBHEGERER

HELZXS
B EES  REBEEFZ FIIER
BMERRS  ZEXHATERLET

RAMAEZBBERZ S

() HEEETETRS

2012 2011
—®—fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
124,642 134,266
6,706 7,232
100,015 76,818
3,366 =

These transactions are conducted in accordance with their
respective contract prices.

*

Unofficial name for identification purpose only

RN ER AR

ZERGDIREEEENEH
B

T

Y FFIERAR - EHES

103

T-—EER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB ISR MY 5

35 Connected transactions and material related party 35 BEXZRBEAIRS (&)
transactions (Continued)
(b) Related party transactions (Continued) (b) BAEARZ (&)
(i)  Key management compensation (i) FEEEEHREN
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Short-term benefits SRR 4,428 4,428
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & k18 |51 24 2% 93 61
4,521 4,489
(i)  Balances with related parties (i) EEBFER MAEER
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Amount due from an associate FEUR— R H & A R BI IR = 32,745
Amount due from non-controlling interests &Y 3F 122 AR AR 50 18 25 1) 7008 12,284 12,965
Balances are unsecured, interest-free and shall be settled in EERTEEE 28 WAR
accordance with the respective credit terms. BEBENEERRER -
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